
WILSONVILLE CITY HALL
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL B

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2015 - 6:30 P.M.
Call To Order:

Chairman's Remarks:

Roll Call:
Cheryl Dorman Richard Martens
Aaron Woods Shawn O'Neil

Dianne Knight Council Liaison Julie Fitzgerald

Citizen's Input:

City Council Liaison's Report:

Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of minutes of the September 28, 2015 meeting.

Sept 28 2015 minutes.pdf

Public Hearing:

A. Resolution No. 316
Old Town Site Design Review for 2 Houses:  Mark Britcliffe -  Applicant for Diane Ferris - Owner.  The 
applicant is requesting approval of a Site Design Review for two single-family dwellings in Old Town.   The site is 

located at 30580 SW Boones Ferry Road on Tax Lots 3801 and 3802 of Section 23AC, T3S, R1W, City of 
Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Staff:  Jennifer Scola

Case Files:        DB15-0074 - Site Design Review

Old Town 2 Houses SR.Exhibits.pdf

B. Resolution No. 317
Charbonneau Boat Dock Access:  Charbonneau Country Club - Applicant.   The applicant is requesting approval of 

a Conditional Use Permit within the Willamette River Greenway Boundary, Type C Tree Removal Plan and an 

abbreviated Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) Impact Report (SRIR) for Charbonneau Country Club, for 
replacement and relocation of an access gangway to the Charbonneau boat marina. The site is located on the 
northwest corner of Tax Lot 318, and also affecting Tax Lot 308, and ODOT R.O.W, in Section 25, Township 3 
South, Range 1 West, Willamette Meridian, City Of Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon. Staff:  Blaise 

Edmonds

Case Files: DB15-0059 - Greenway Conditional Use
DB15-0060 - Type C Tree Plan

SI15-0001   -  Abbreviated Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) 
    and map verification within the Significant Resource Overlay

    Zone (SROZ)   

Charbonneau CUP SR.Exhibit.pdf, Exhibit B1.pdf, Exhibit B2.pdf

Board Member Communications:

A. Results of the October 12, 2015 DRB Panel A meeting.

DRB-A Oct 12 2015 Results.pdf

Staff Communications:

A. Thank you, Dianne Knight and Cheryl Dorman, for your service on the Development Review Board!

Adjournment

Assistive Listening Devices (ALD) are available for persons with impaired hearing and can be scheduled for this meeting.  The 

City will also endeavor to provide the following services, without cost, if requested at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

l Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments.
l Qualified bilingual interpreters.
l To obtain such services, please call the Planning Assistant at 503 682-4960

I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

VI.

Documents:

VII.

Documents:

Documents:

VIII.

Documents:

IX.

X.



WILSONVILLE CITY HALL
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL B

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2015 - 6:30 P.M.
Call To Order:

Chairman's Remarks:

Roll Call:
Cheryl Dorman Richard Martens
Aaron Woods Shawn O'Neil

Dianne Knight Council Liaison Julie Fitzgerald

Citizen's Input:

City Council Liaison's Report:

Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of minutes of the September 28, 2015 meeting.

Sept 28 2015 minutes.pdf

Public Hearing:

A. Resolution No. 316
Old Town Site Design Review for 2 Houses:  Mark Britcliffe -  Applicant for Diane Ferris - Owner.  The 
applicant is requesting approval of a Site Design Review for two single-family dwellings in Old Town.   The site is 

located at 30580 SW Boones Ferry Road on Tax Lots 3801 and 3802 of Section 23AC, T3S, R1W, City of 
Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Staff:  Jennifer Scola

Case Files:        DB15-0074 - Site Design Review

Old Town 2 Houses SR.Exhibits.pdf

B. Resolution No. 317
Charbonneau Boat Dock Access:  Charbonneau Country Club - Applicant.   The applicant is requesting approval of 

a Conditional Use Permit within the Willamette River Greenway Boundary, Type C Tree Removal Plan and an 

abbreviated Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) Impact Report (SRIR) for Charbonneau Country Club, for 
replacement and relocation of an access gangway to the Charbonneau boat marina. The site is located on the 
northwest corner of Tax Lot 318, and also affecting Tax Lot 308, and ODOT R.O.W, in Section 25, Township 3 
South, Range 1 West, Willamette Meridian, City Of Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon. Staff:  Blaise 

Edmonds

Case Files: DB15-0059 - Greenway Conditional Use
DB15-0060 - Type C Tree Plan

SI15-0001   -  Abbreviated Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) 
    and map verification within the Significant Resource Overlay

    Zone (SROZ)   

Charbonneau CUP SR.Exhibit.pdf, Exhibit B1.pdf, Exhibit B2.pdf

Board Member Communications:

A. Results of the October 12, 2015 DRB Panel A meeting.

DRB-A Oct 12 2015 Results.pdf

Staff Communications:

A. Thank you, Dianne Knight and Cheryl Dorman, for your service on the Development Review Board!

Adjournment

Assistive Listening Devices (ALD) are available for persons with impaired hearing and can be scheduled for this meeting.  The 

City will also endeavor to provide the following services, without cost, if requested at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

l Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments.
l Qualified bilingual interpreters.
l To obtain such services, please call the Planning Assistant at 503 682-4960

I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

VI.

Documents:

VII.

Documents:

Documents:

VIII.

Documents:

IX.

X.

http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/5f3b38c9-a4ac-42c5-a22d-785a71ae7db4


 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2015 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

VI. Consent Agenda: 
A. Approval of minutes from the September 28, 2015 

DRB Panel B meeting 
 
 
  



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 1 of 17  

Wilsonville City Hall 
29799 SW Town Center Loop East 
Wilsonville, Oregon 
 
Development Review Board – Panel B 
Minutes–September 28, 2015   6:30 PM 
 
I. Call to Order 
Chair Aaron Woods called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
II. Chair’s Remarks 
The Conduct of Hearing and Statement of Public Notice were read into the record. 
 
III. Roll Call 
Present for roll call were:   Aaron Woods, Cheryl Dorman, Richard Martens, Shawn O’Neil, and Council 

Liaison Julie Fitzgerald. Dianne Knight was absent. 
 
Staff present:  Blaise Edmonds, Barbara Jacobson, Steve Adams, Michael Wheeler, Daniel Pauly, and 

Jennifer Scola. 
 
IV. Citizens’ Input This is an opportunity for visitors to address the Development Review Board 
(DRB) on items not on the agenda.  There were no comments. 
 
V. City Council Liaison Report 
 
Councilor Fitzgerald reported on the following items recently addressed before City Council: 

• The Public Works Department was working on a plan on how to comply with a retrofit update 
requirement of the stormwater management in the city to meet federal requirements related to 
how all the city’s stormwater was being filtered and managed as it went into streams and the 
Willamette River. These requirements related to keeping the rivers clean and ensuring 
temperatures, bacteria, and etc. were addressed appropriately. 

• City Council approved the addition of crosswalks on Canyon Creek Rd which would enhance 
pedestrian safety. 

• The Transit Master Planning Task Force, which included a number of citizens, was providing 
feedback on how the SMART transportation system was working and how it connected with 
TriMet.  More feedback was being sought, so anyone with comments should contact SMART. 

• She noted City Council was testing the use of iPads to review materials and reports electronically 
instead of receiving paper materials and the new format was working very well. She was uncertain if 
the detailed maps used by the DRB could be adequately seen in electronic form, so they might still 
need to be in paper form. City Council was glad to respond to anyone with questions about how the 
new format was working. 

 
VI. Consent Agenda: 

A. Approval of minutes of August 24, 2015 meeting 
Richard Martens moved to approve the August 24, 2015 DRB Panel B meeting minutes as 
presented. Shawn O’Neal seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
VIII. Public Hearing: 

A. Resolution No. 313.  Clackamas Community College Pole Yard Expansion:  Clackamas 
Community College – Owner/Applicant.  The applicant is requesting approval of a Stage I 
Preliminary Plan Revision, Revised Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review and Type ‘C’ 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 2 of 17  

Tree Removal Plan for expansion of the existing electrical lineman training facility at the 
Wilsonville Campus of Clackamas Community College.   The site is located on Tax Lot 
1300 Section 13CB, Township 3 South, Range 1 West, Willamette Meridian, City of 
Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Staff:  Daniel Pauly. 

 
Case Files:  DB15-0041 – Stage I Preliminary Plan Revision 

   DB15-0042 – Revised Stage II Final Plan 
   DB15-0043 – Site Design Review 
    DB15-0044 – Type C Tree Removal Plan 

 
Chair Woods called the public hearing to order at 6:38 p.m. and read the conduct of hearing format into 
the record. All Board members declared for the record that they had visited the site. No board member, 
however, declared a conflict of interest, bias, or conclusion from a site visit. No board member 
participation was challenged by any member of the audience. 
 
Daniel Pauly, AICP, Associate Planner, announced that the criteria applicable to the application were 
stated on page 2 of the Staff report, which was entered into the record. Copies of the report were made 
available to the side of the room.  
 
Mr. Pauly presented the Staff report for the proposed Clackamas Community College Training Yard 
Expansion via PowerPoint (Exhibit A3), noting the project’s location and surrounding features with these 
key comments: 
• The proposal was for a major expansion of the existing electric lineman training yard at the 

Wilsonville Campus of Clackamas Community College, which included the installation of a 75 ft 
lattice tower and a number of 55-ft wood poles. 

• The requested Stage I Preliminary Plan Revision would expand the existing 21,000 sq ft pole yard to 
45,000 sq ft. Reviewing several slides, he briefly described the history of revisions made to the 
college’s site since the original 1990 Master Plan. 

• The Stage II Final Plan Revision regarded the reprogramming of the existing pole yard and additional 
programming for the expanded pole yard area.   
• The proposed programming for the existing pole yard included the existing 12 poles, underground 

vaults, and storage containers, as well as the proposed 75-ft lattice tower, which would be located 
on the north portion of the site, close to the post office, and two 55-ft wood poles, along with 
other shorter pole areas, a pole rack, three additional underground vaults, a transformer structure, 
pad with transformer, crane training area, and a cover over the existing storage containers. 

• The expanded pole yard area program regarded mainly wooden poles. He indicated that the six 
pairs of poles in the center and circle of poles shown in the upper right hand corner of Slide 13 
were proposed to be up to 55-ft tall. 

• He noted Finding B49 related to Development Code Section 4.181, which discussed exceptions to 
the height limit. The proposed poles were significantly higher than the 35-ft height limit in the 
Planned Development Commercial Town Center Zone, however, above ground electrical towers 
and poles were one of the exceptions. Staff believed the proposed poles qualified for the 
exemption, because even though the poles would be used for training purposes, rather than actual 
electrical transmission, the necessary function required the poles to be that tall. 

• Screening. The existing vegetation, especially the trees, provided a lot of screening, particularly 
to the north and the west. Additional screening proposed to the south included Leyland cypress 
and other plantings that would grow quickly.  

• Off-site Visibility. He reviewed several images and photographs in Exhibit A2 showing views of the 
subject project site from 13 different locations in the city to demonstrate the visual impact the 
proposed towers and poles would have on the community. At each location, he looked at the visibility 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 3 of 17  

of the 55-ft poles and 75-ft lattice tower, which was small compared to those in the BPA easement, 
which he believed were 100- to 125-ft high. 
• It was important to consider what portion of the tower/poles was visible because the visual height 

was quite low at some of the most visible locations due to the distance between the view point 
and the tower or poles. Diagrams were provided for each location, showing the distance between 
the view point and tower/poles, vegetation or a building that predominately blocked the view, and 
the visible portion of the tower/poles according to what staff could determine (Page 52 of 95 of 
the Staff report). 

• He described the distances to the tower/poles, any vegetation or structures that blocked the view, 
and the visible portion of the tower/poles for each of the 13 viewpoint locations (Page 86 of 95) 
with these key comments: 
• Concerns had been expressed via email about the project’s visibility from the Korean War 

Memorial, but the existing shrubs and trees, totally blocked the view of the tower/poles. 
(Locations 3 and 4) 

• While more visible in the winter months, the view from Town Center Path near the college 
and post office property line would be substantially obscured by the existing trees, which 
were pretty dense. This was the closest public location to lattice tower .(Location 6) 

• The visual impact would be minimal at the following locations because existing trees or a 
building obscured all but the tops of some of the poles and/or tower: Town Center Park 
Fountains; Town Center Path just north of the college’s gravel path; Town Center Loop East 
sidewalk at post office delivery area curb cut; and Town Center Loop East sidewalk at the 
college’s north entrance. (Locations 2, 5, 7, and 10) 

• The top of the tower would be seen pretty clearly from the post office parking lot sidewalk 
south of the post office building, which was about 200 ft from the tower. (Location 8) 

• The top third of the tower would be visible from the Town Center Loop East sidewalk at the 
college’s main entrance. (Location 11) 

• Although at a distance, the tops of all the new proposed tower/poles could be seen from the 
Town Center Loop East sidewalk between the college and Courtside Dr. (Location 12) 

• About the top third of the tower and the tops of the poles would be seen from the Town 
Center Loop East sidewalk along the Providence parking lot. However, the parking lot trees 
would continue to grow and would further obscure the view. (Location 9)   

• The biggest visual impacts would be seen from Courtside Dr at the west City Hall parking lot 
driveway and Courtside Dr and Town Center Loop E where about the top half of the new 
tower and all the proposed poles would be seen. (Locations 1 and 13) 

• He continued reviewing the Staff report via PowerPoint (Exhibit A3), noting that the Site Design 
Review did not include a lot of architectural detail as the power poles and equipment were a standard 
design. The coverage of the storage container was an appropriate durable material that met the site 
design review criteria. 
• The landscaping was professionally designed and included appropriately sized and spaced plant 

materials. He noted that in the electronic copy of the packet, the paper copy of the Landscape 
Plan was missing; however, Staff would ensure it was included in the record. 

 
Jennifer Scola, Assistant Planner, continued the Staff report via PowerPoint by presenting the Type C 
Tree Removal Plan with these comments: 
• Of the 14 trees inventoried in the surrounding area of the project, 9 trees were proposed for removal, 

eight willow trees and one Hawthorn tree, which were indicated on Existing Conditions (Slide 21). 
The only trees proposed for removal were located within the area of the proposed expansion. 

• The Applicant’s Mitigation Plan exceeded the Development Code’s required 1:1 replacement ratio. 
Seventeen fast-growing cypress trees were proposed along the south edge of the property and a red 
maple tree was also proposed to a landscape area near the parking lot. 

 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 4 of 17  

Chair Woods noted the Summary on Page 7 of 95 of the Staff report referenced poles that were mainly 
wooden. He asked if there were poles of other materials. 
 
Mr. Pauly clarified that he intended to say the project included mainly poles as there would be other 
storage racks and equipment in the pole yard. “Mainly” was not intended to reference the pole material.  
 
Cheryl Dorman confirmed that the trees at the Korean War Memorial belonged to the City. 
 
Richard Martens asked if the fast-growing trees would take away from the trees’ durability and 
longevity.  
 
Mr. Pauly responded the proposed trees were not a trash tree, but were fairly durable and a good option 
for this kind of application. 
 
Chair Woods asked if the cover for the 8x12 ft trenching/shoring hole, shown at the bottom left corner of 
the sheet, would be locked. 
 
Mr. Pauly deferred to the Applicant, but understood the professional training area would follow best 
practices and overseen by OSHA. 
 
Mr. Martens asked what if Staff knew what might be built immediately south of the subject site, noting 
the proposed project would be most visible to the parcel to the south. 
 
Mr. Pauly replied the parcel was zoned Planned Development Commercial Town Center, which allowed 
for vertical mixed use, so a residential use was possible. Kaiser Permanente currently owned the property 
and had for decades. No timeframe had been indicated for development and Kaiser provided no comment 
about the proposed project. 
 
Mr. Martens noted the existing screening was very effective since he had no clue the current facility was 
there having driven by the site countless times. 
 
Mr. Pauly said the biggest difference was that the training facility was barely noticeable at this time, but 
the facility would be noticeable with the proposed expansion. 
 
Chair Woods called for the Applicants presentation.  
 
Ray Moore, All County Surveyors & Planners, said his firm was hired by Clackamas Community 
College to put the application together. He noted that Shelly Tracy from the college and Tom from PGE 
were present to answer any detailed questions about the program. He thanked Staff for the wonderful 
sight analysis conducted around the pole yard. He had reviewed the Staff report, which was pretty 
straightforward, and said the Applicant could satisfy all the conditions of approval. He noted his firm 
would be doing the final engineering, staking, and etc. for the project. 
 
Chair Woods asked about the trench and whether the cover would be secured. 
 
Mr. Moore believed the trench was already present and the Applicant locked the gate that surrounds the 
entire facility and plywood was placed over the trench, which the Applicant would continue doing. 
 
Chair Woods confirmed the trench would not be visible from the outside; only the plywood placed over 
the trench. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 5 of 17  

Chair Woods called for public testimony in favor of, opposed, and neutral to the application. Seeing 
none, he confirmed the Board had no further questions and closed the public hearing at 7:04 pm. 
 
Shawn O’Neil moved to adopt the September 21, 2015 Staff report as presented and approve 
Resolution No. 313. Cheryl Dorman seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Chair Woods read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 

B. Resolution No. 314.  A Storage Place DBA Wilsonville Storage:  David K. Shefrin, 
Trustee – Owner.  The applicant is requesting approval of a Stage I Preliminary Plan 
Modification, Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review and Sign Review for construction of a 
three-story commercial self-storage facility and associated improvements.  The site is located 
at 29200 SW Town Center Loop East on Tax Lot 501 Section 13CB, Township 3 South, 
Range 1 West, Willamette Meridian, City of Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Staff:  
Michael Wheeler 
 

Case Files:  DB15-0037 – Stage I Preliminary Plan Modification 
   DB15-0038 – Stage II Final Plan 
   DB15-0039 – Site Design Review 
    DB15-0040 – Sign Review 

 
Chair Woods called the public hearing to order at 7:06 p.m. and read the conduct of hearing format into 
the record. All Board members declared for the record that they had visited the site. No board member, 
however, declared a conflict of interest, bias, or conclusion from a site visit. No board member 
participation was challenged by any member of the audience. 
 
Michael Wheeler, Associate Planner, announced that the criteria applicable to the application were 
stated on page 2 of the Staff report, which was entered into the record. Copies of the report were made 
available to the side of the room.  
 
Mr. Wheeler noted the two-page memorandum dated September 22, 2015 from Tualatin Valley Fire & 
Rescue had been identified as Exhibit C5 on Page 16 of 93 of the Staff report as placeholder. Staff did not 
have the date of the letter at the time the Staff report was published, so the date of the letter would be 
included in the record. He presented the Staff report via PowerPoint, noting the project’s location and 
surrounding features, with these key additional comments: 
• The proposal was for the development of a 79,900 sq ft storage facility on an approximately 1.2 acre 

parcel located on the east corner of Town Center Loop East and Canyon Creek Rd. He noted the 
displayed tax maps still identified Canyon Creek Rd as Vlahos Dr. 
• The enlarged tax map (Slide 6) showed the alignment of the access easement between Parcels 3 

and 4. Parcel 4 was the subject of the proposed application. 
• The four colored elevations of the proposed three-story structure were displayed (Slides 8 and 9), and 

the proposed location of the signage, detailed on Sheet A4.1 (Slide 10), and the office at the 
northwest corner of the building were noted. (Slide 12) 
• The building planes would be softened and broken up by the jogged building walls and 

architectural treatments on the south and west elevations.  
• As footnoted in the Staff report, true north was referenced on the drawings in a lighter shade, and the 

Applicant used a reference north, which was slightly askew of true north. The Applicant’s narrative 
used the reference north. 

• Early discussions with the Applicant involved trying to provide some visual interest from the exterior 
by showing that passageways actually had activities at windows and the provided floor plans 
demonstrated that result. (Slides 17-19)  



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 6 of 17  

• Sheet A2.4 (Slide 20) showed the proposed trash enclosure, which was too small to serve the square 
footage and components of the building as discussed in the Staff report. 

• He briefly reviewed the civil drawings (Slides 23-26), noting the site required few grading changes 
and that the major utilities were already present, either in the public rights-of-way or in the easement 
that served both the subject and adjacent Parcel 3. 
• The Erosion Control Plan and storm drainage calculations accounted for a rainwater management 

feature at the south end of the property adjacent to the building. The feature would include 
specialty plants known to cleanse stormwater, not just a typical ornamental landscape scheme. 

• A revised Landscape Plan included the specialty plants along with the original proposal. 
• The Color and Materials Board was initially provided in photographic form. Sheet A3.2 (Slide 

33) illustrated the proposed materials on the future building. 
• Staff’s submittals also included the original Wilsonville City Center Plan (Exhibit D1) showing the 

intended commercial use, further details related to the Partition Plat recorded in 2008, and a map of 
the SMART Transit route showing a transit stop in front of the subject site. 

• He reviewed the four issues discussed on Page 3 of 93 of the Staff report and explained that the 
drawings distributed to the Board included items he did not know existed because he was using 
previous drawings. 
• Issue 1. The original drawings had not shown that pedestrian circulation was continuous, but the 

Applicant had addressed the issue by altering the design so pedestrians would now travel in front 
of the parking spaces that previously interrupted that circulation.  
• The pedestrian circulation was not addressed in the Staff report because originally, the 

Applicant had not indicated one portion of the pedestrian pathway now shown on Sheet A1.1 
(Slide 12).  

• The sidewalk was required to be 5-ft wide, but wheel stops were now shown at each of the 
proposed parking spaces that directly abutted the sidewalk. In order to accommodate any 
vehicle overhang, which would obscure about 1½ to 2 ft of the sidewalk in spite of the wheel 
stops, the City would typically require the sidewalk to be widened to a minimum of 7 ft to 
accommodate vehicle overhang should it occur. Only one portion of the sidewalk was 7-ft 
wide, but the sidewalk in front of the remaining parking spaces on the northern side, and all 
of the parking spaces on the eastern side of the building were only 5-ft wide. 

• He encouraged adding a condition requiring that pedestrian pathways be widened to a 
minimum of 7 ft where the sidewalk could be obstructed by overhanging vehicles. He would 
work on the language for the new condition during the Applicant’s testimony. 

• Issue 2. Screen Abutting Residential Use. The plantings in the original design, though well 
designed, seemed a bit low to the ground and did not provide a lot of vertical screening, which 
would be appreciated by the neighboring property owners once the building was erected and in 
use. When a facility exceeded 24-ft in height, the Board had the authority to require more mature 
plant materials for screening. He noted 8-ft was available for additional plantings. 

• Issue 3. Bicycle Parking. The bike rack proposed outside the office entry on Exhibit A1.1 (Slide 
12), did not identify the number of bikes that could be served. A minimum of four bikes must be 
able to be accommodated for the subject site.  

• Issue 4. Solid Waste Storage. The Applicant proposed 175 sq ft of storage, however, based on the 
floor area of the building and the two respective uses, namely the office and warehousing of 
materials, the Code actually required an increase to 438 sq ft. Staff believed it was possible to 
reconfigure the solid waste storage area and still provide convenient access to the facility for the 
solid waste disposal franchisee, but also to the users of the storage facility without having to go 
into the vehicle travel lane. Although an additional design challenge, the additional area was 
required by the Code. 

• He noted the four components of the proposed application, noting that the Sign Review was for the 
two signs wall signs proposed on two elevations. 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 7 of 17  

• Staff believed that with the proposed conditions of approval, the proposed project could meet the 
requirements of the Development Code. Staff recommended approval of all proposed case files with 
the conditions, which began on Page 4 of the Staff report. 

 
Cheryl Dorman confirmed Staff had a solution for the pedestrian circulation issue and understood the 
Board could make a recommendation to make the screening abutting residential use higher, but that no 
condition had been provided.  
 
Mr. Wheeler clarified that Condition PDC 3 on Page 13 of 93 addressed the screening issue. He 
confirmed that the solid waste storage issue was addressed in Condition PDC 13. 
 
Richard Martens asked how the square footage for the solid waste enclosure was calculated. 
 
Mr. Wheeler reviewed the calculations which were included on Page 42 of 93 in Finding C26. The 
Development Code prescribed a minimum of 6 sq ft of storage per 1,000 sq ft of gross floor area for 
warehouse use. The office use was only 600 sq ft, so 2.4 sq ft of solid waste storage area was required. He 
confirmed the proposed project was considered as a warehouse in the calculation. 
 
Chair Woods called for the Applicant’s presentation. 
 
Displayed before the Board were two display boards that were color renditions showing Perspective – 
Corner Canyon Creek Rd/Town Center Road (Sheet A0.1) and Perspective—Canyon Creek Rd (Sheet 
A0.2). Both boards were entered into the record as Exhibit B12 to be included in the plan set. 
• A third display board included a composite of four renderings already included in the Staff report: 

two illustrations showed the building elevations, the sign drawing with red coloring added, and the 
site plan, also with color added. 

 
Ralph Tahran, Architect, Tahran Architecture & Planning, 13741 Knaus Rd, Lake Oswego, OR, 
stated he was representing his clients, Jerry Carlson and Robert Sterns. He believed Mr. Wheeler had 
described the Wilsonville Storage Project very well.  
• He presented a perspective rendering of the project from the corner of Canyon Creek Rd and Town 

Center Lp to show in three dimension the color innovations, distinctive elements, and articulation of 
the building. (Sheet A0.1) A perspective was also shown of the more service-oriented area of the 
project from Canyon Creek Rd. (Sheet A0.2) A third display board included the colored site plan, an 
illustration of the Landscape Plan and the colored building elevations.  

• The Applicant had worked with Staff over a period of about four months on the proposed building. 
From day one, Mr. Edmonds and Mr. Wheeler noted the Applicant would need to take the design a 
step higher than any other storage building, and that it needed to represent a more pedestrian-oriented 
building along this important corner of Town Center Lp.  
• He noted that he had designed the building to the east of the subject project and wanted to do 

something that was representative and complementary to that building and owner. He worked 
with that adjacent owner, who had been given notice and also wanted approval of the proposed 
storage project.  

• As he worked through the design with Staff, he focused particularly on the Town Center Lp and 
Canyon Creek Rd elevations, which Staff mentioned needed to be articulated. He was happy to 
say the Applicant had Staff’s recommendation of approval for a building everyone could be proud 
of and they wanted to move forward and build the building.  

• The building was composed of a few different types of metal materials and textures; metal panels that 
had several different textures and colors, as well as a masonry base and significant glazing. He 
believed a design had been achieved that responded very well to the street frontages.  



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 8 of 17  

• The Applicant had worked through the issues with Staff over the months, but the Applicant wanted to 
discuss two conditions. In reading through some of the materials, it appeared the Applicant had the 
authority to discuss their concerns regarding the conditions, and that the Board had the authority to 
make some changes. 
• The first concern regarded the landscape requirement on the north side that abutted the retirement 

center which seemed to be something that was open to opinion. He agreed with the concept and 
philosophy, but also believed the landscape requirement was pretty well being met there given the 
large trees that were probably planted by the retirement center. Landscaping was proposed in the 
8-ft landscape strip along the Applicant’s frontage, but he did not believe the Applicant showed 
large trees being planted since there were already large trees along the frontage. 
• He circulated three photographs, entered into the record as Exhibit B17, showing the large 

trees that already existed adjacent to the retirement center. The Applicant believed a pretty 
adequate screen already existed, but if some reinforcement was needed in there, they were 
happy to talk about it. He expected that the retirement center was probably required to screen 
from the Applicant’s property in the past, so the Applicant thought the additional screening 
might be redundant. 

• The second concern regarded the trash enclosure. The Applicant had discussed the proposed 175 
sq ft trash enclosure with Republic Services, who approved of the concept and design. He 
understood this conflicted with the City's trash enclosure calculations, but he did not think that 
calculation was an appropriate measure for the storage facility; 6 sq ft per 1,000 sq ft of gross 
floor area was excessive.  
• The proposed 175 sq ft enclosure was quite large and actually two times the size of normal 

waste enclosures at his client's six different facilities in the metropolitan area. None of the 
other storage facilities had experienced any trouble in terms of their waste facilities.  

• With the proposed 175 sq ft facility being at least twice as large as any of the others, adding 
another 300 sq ft, almost doubling the size, was unnecessary and would detract from the 
facility. The Applicant sought sort of condition deeming the proposed trash facility adequate. 

• He suggested that the owner of the other facilities come forward to discuss his experiences 
with his other facilities in the metropolitan area and address any questions about how the 
trash facilities worked. 

• He did not know how to move forward, but the Applicant wanted the proposed project 
approved with the storage waste facility as currently designed. He offered to address any 
questions from the Board. 

 
Mr. Martens asked if the tenants would have access the waste disposal facility.  
 
Jerry Carlson, 7100 SW Arbor Lake Drive, Charbonneau, answered yes, the tenants had limited 
access. The garbage retention areas at the other six facilities were 66, 50, 77, 48, 48, and 77 sq ft with an 
average square footage of 62 sq ft. The facility in Clackamas had more than 90,000 sq ft of rental area, 
compared to 58,000 sq ft at this facility, and that waste facility was 7 ft by 11 ft and seemed to be very 
adequate. The facility had garbage pickup once a week. The lease agreement required tenants to remove 
their own garbage and leave the unit swept free. They did not leave trash or anything in the unit, which 
reduced his responsibility to take care of that. Occasionally, a tenant would leave a mattress, which the 
maintenance person would take to the dump. 
 
Mr. Martens asked if tenants had moving boxes that needed discarded and if the proposed waste area 
included a recycle bin. 
• Mr. Carlson responded that occasionally tenants do, but they were asked to remove everything they 

brought in as part of the lease agreement. Cardboard was recycled occasionally, and a recycle area did 
exist with three, 55 gallon containers for glass or plastics. There was usually also a 2 or 3 yard roll out 
container for the general garbage, which was picked up by the garbage truck. 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 9 of 17  

 
Ms. Dorman understood that the idea was that customers would not use the facility, but take their own 
garbage in and out with them. 
 
Mr. Carlson responded the facility was not really made to be accessible for customers. 
 
Shawn O'Neil confirmed this was the only facility Mr. Carlson had in Wilsonville. 
 
Chair Woods confirmed the proposed facility was three-stories and asked with regard to the screening if 
Mr. Tahran had viewed the subject site from the Brookdale senior facility to get an idea if the storage 
facility would overlook the Brookdale senior facility to the north. 
 
Mr. Tahran stated he had visited this morning. The Brookdale Retirement Center was set back about 20 
to 30 ft from the property line. The center had planted trees in there sporadically, probably to create an 
environment of their own. The retirement facility was almost a three-story building itself and he believed 
their third story was probably equal to the eave height of the proposed building. No windows or anything 
that would intrude on the retirement center’s private space was proposed. He believed it was a pretty good 
screen for their use.  
 
Chair Woods asked about the lighting on the north side of the building and if the facility operated 24/7. 
• Mr. Tahran responded the Applicant went through the City’s prescriptive lighting ordinance and 15 

ft was the maximum height the Applicant could place luminaires, which would all be down lighting. 
No lighting would shine outward or upward due to the Dark Sky Ordinance. 

• Mr. Carlson stated the operating hours were 7 am to 9:00 pm. The building was secure with about 35 
to 48 cameras on site, which was access controlled. Every unit was access controlled with a keypad. 
Tenants would have to key in when coming on site which would dis-alarm their unit at that point. 
Tenants could then access their unit and then key out when they leave to re-arm the unit at the 
entrance area. He confirmed tenants would only be able to access the facility from 7 am to 9 pm.  

 
Ms. Dorman noted the Board had certain criteria to follow for the garbage area for commercial use, 
which would make sense if the proposal was a normal commercial building a certain number of people 
would be expected on a daily basis. She asked what was in place for other storage facilities. After reading 
through the material and listening to testimony, the requirement did seem a bit excessive. The Code 
followed like a commercial warehouse, etc. from what she read on commercial storage. The Applicant 
would have 79,000 sq ft of warehouse space requiring a total of 475 sq ft. With the Applicant’s intended 
use, there would not be a lot of contribution from customers to that garbage facility, so why would the 
Applicant be required to have such a large space? 
 
Mr. Wheeler responded the requirements for solid waste storage for warehouse use and their office use 
were extracted from the Code. Staff was not offering a judgment, but responding to the Code’s minimum 
requirement. He had no knowledge from earlier case files or facilities in the city with regard to that 
requirement and how it was addressed at that time. 
 
Ms. Dorman commented that aside from the Applicant asking for a variance from Code, it made sense 
that maybe the storage area requirement was larger than what was needed.   
 
Mr. Edmonds replied the DRB could make that judgment, and if so, a finding should be provided 
regarding why the garbage area should be reduced to a lower amount to support deleting or modifying 
Condition PDC 13. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 10 of 17  

Mr. O'Neil asked if not allowing tenants to utilize the garbage facility was standard in the storage 
industry. His temptation was to use the closest garbage bin available, no matter if the rule said he could or 
not. He was seeing potential garbage on the ground or tenants using the trash facility anyway. 
• Mr. Carlson said that garbage cans were provided throughout the facility for trash like pop cans or 

sandwich wrappers discarded when people were moving, etc. but that was very limited. His facilities 
had not had that problem. For his facilities, not allowing tenants to utilize the garbage facility was an 
absolute standard, especially when one had control of the customer like in his facilities. The same was 
true for many others as well. Some outlying places that had no manager on site and an access of some 
type, then they had problems with that. 

 
Mr. O’Neil said his key interest was to be consistent with other storage facilities in Wilsonville. He did 
not have enough here to understand whether other facilities did things much differently. Even though he 
understood from a garbage perspective that Mr. Carlson was not allowing people to use it, he wondered if 
the end result would be different.  
 
Mr. Carlson stated twice the amount of space was provided here than done for his very largest facility, 
the proposed trash area was three times the amount of space. 
• He clarified that his largest facility had 90,000 sq ft of rentable space, which was about one and a half 

times the size of the facility proposed in Wilsonville, which was only 59,000 sq ft but had three times 
the garbage area at 175 sq ft. 

 
Chair Woods asked how the 175 sq ft area was determined. 
 
Mr. Tahran said he talked with Republic Services in terms of having garbage and recycle areas and they 
knew it was larger than the other facilities that his client had. 
 
Mr. Carlson said the Applicant agreed with the extra access so a person could access the trash area 
without having to walk out into the traffic way. That was not the case with his other facilities, but he 
agreed that would be fine with this one. 
 
Chair Woods asked how much square footage other facilities in Wilsonville had, and whether this would 
be the largest storage facility in the city. 
• Mr. Wheeler replied he did not have any data from any other storage facilities because the City was 

dealing with an application of the material before the Board tonight. The burden was on the Applicant 
to demonstrate compliance with the Development Code, not to reflect their approval ability based on 
what somebody else did. He apologized for not having that background available. There were a 
handful of facilities, such as the one on Boones Ferry Rd on the north side of Wilsonville Rd.  

• He could not know if this was the largest facility in town without digging into the case files. 
 
Mr. Edmonds said the only similar facility would be Just Store It on Wilsonville Rd, which offered 
indoor climate control storage. He did not recall the square footage, but it was a smaller facility.  
 
Mr. Wheeler added that data could be brought back before the DRB if desired.  
 
Ms. Dorman said she was looking at it what made sense and whether that capacity was needed. The 
hearing could be continued if the Applicant could bring that information, but she did not believe it was 
necessary to compare. While it was good to be consistent, the issue had probably not been raised before 
the DRB previously. She questioned whether it made sense for this facility to have such a large solid 
waste storage area.  
 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 11 of 17  

Mr. Wheeler replied that with regard to the calculations discussed earlier, two classes were chosen. 
Consistently through the report, Staff referred to the bulk use of the building as a warehouse, which was 
an industrial use, even though in the interpretation included in the record from an earlier inquiry received, 
that personal storage was viewed as being a commercial use. If commercial floor area requirements had 
been considered instead for the solid waste area, the requirement would have been much higher than the 
warehouse use. He understood the concern, but as Staff and having to juxtapose the Applicant's proposal 
against the review criteria, Staff did not have the latitude of saying, “That did not seem appropriate.” 
 
Ms. Dorman agreed that made sense, and clarified she was not criticizing how Staff came up with the 
calculation, but the Applicant had asked for a variance, so maybe that was something the Board should 
consider. 
 
Mr. Wheeler clarified a variance was a different process. The Applicant was actually asking the Board to 
waive that requirement. Staff received no waiver requests, and the Applicant’s submitted material 
expressed that they requested no waivers. He understood the collective desire to do something different, 
but findings would need to be imbedded in the report to achieve that. 
 
Mr. O'Neil asked if this was the first time Staff had heard about the request to waive the requirement for 
the garbage facility. 
 
Mr. Wheeler responded yes, noting the Staff report was published a week ago. 
 
Mr. Tahran agreed he had not asked for a waiver. He had looked at Condition PDB 2 on Page 4 of the 
Staff report which stated, "The Applicant/Owner shall develop the site for use as a three story commercial 
storage facility, unless altered by a subsequent Board approval, or minor revisions are approved by the 
Planning Director."  
 
Mr. Wheeler explained that was for subsequent modifications to the building and/or use, not for the 
application being considered by the Board tonight. That language was included to avoid being locked into 
a circumstance that if the Applicant built what the Board approved, but then decided to move a door or 
expand the building in a very minor way, the Applicant would not be required to return to the hearing 
body necessarily to do something Staff could review, approve, and expedite at the Staff level. There had 
been cases where the language was not embedded, and the applicant had to return for a hearing, which 
was an awkward thing for small improvements.  
 
Mr. Tahran responded that was his mistake.  
 
Mr. Martens confirmed Staff was in a position of having to benchmark this based upon the Development 
Code. Staff indicated that if the Board wanted to approve something different, there would have to be a 
submission of findings.  
 
Mr. Edmonds explained if the Board believed the Applicant provided adequate, persuasive testimony 
that a reduction of the garbage capacity was consistent with the other facilities that they operate and that 
the size was adequate, that the board create a finding to support a smaller container size. 
 
Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney, believed that would need to be tied to a justification for a 
waiver. 
 
Chair Woods assumed that justification needed to come from the Applicant. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 12 of 17  

Ms. Jacobson provided some procedural guidance with regard to further questions for the Applicant and 
making a motion. She suggested that Mr. Wheeler read his conditions into the record before closing the 
hearing. 
 
Chair Woods confirmed there were no further questions for the Applicant. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated he assumed the existing 16 conditions related to Site Design Review would remain 
and suggested adding new Condition PDC 17 requiring that where a proposed pedestrian sidewalk 
abutted parking spaces, despite the presences of a wheel stop, that those portions of sidewalk be widened 
to 7 feet to accommodate up to 2 feet of vehicle overhanging the sidewalk. This addressed the minimum 
Code requirement. He described how parking a truck backward in a parking space at City Hall resulted in 
having no sidewalk available. Seven feet would provide the needed pedestrian passage in front of the 
bank of parking on the eastside, south side, and a portion of the parking on the north side. (Slide 12) 
• He clarified there was no parking along Town Center Lp, noting the diagram was at an angle with the 

compass rows. The drive came from Town Center Lp East, headed relative north, turned left, and 
went relative west back out to Canyon Creek Rd. He indicated on the drawing that the sidewalks on 
the south were those between the building and drive aisle, and then the property owner's site was 
directly adjacent to the south, which was retail.  

• He confirmed the sidewalk was not facing the street, but the parking abutting the drive aisle. 
Similarly, on the north side of the building as the drive continued out to Canyon Creek Rd, the 
segment on the west end where the parking was adjacent to the sidewalk, that 5-ft wide sidewalk 
would be overhung by vehicles if the 7-ft sidewalk width was not achieved at that location. 

 
Ms. Jacobson asked if the condition could be summarized to say something like, "Wherever there are 
wheel stops adjacent to a sidewalk, the sidewalk needs to be 7 feet wide." 
 
Mr. Wheeler responded the problem was there were wheel stops on all parking spaces and some 
sidewalks were already proposed as being wider than 7 ft, so there was no need to require what was 
already being provided. It should read, "Where parking abuts a pedestrian walkway, despite the presence 
of wheel stops, those sidewalks shall be a minimum of 7 feet in width." He noted 25 percent of the 
parking already satisfied that requirement on the north side on the east end. 
 
Mr. Tahran understood the intent was to have a 5-ft clear sidewalk. Typically, wheel stops are to provide 
a wheel stop, and then another 2.5 to 3 ft of bumper overhang to achieve the 5 ft of pedestrian movement. 
That was how the typical parking requirements read from his experience. If the condition stated that the 
Applicant needed to provide a clear 5-ft sidewalk, it would be less confusing than what he was hearing. 
 
Ms. Dorman understood from Staff that if this was a storage facility, many people would probably be 
driving trucks to put their belongings in the structure. If a truck was backed in, it might go over that wheel 
stop and further into the sidewalk.  
 
Mr. Wheeler added that more importantly, the wheel stops on each parking space were illustrated as 
being so close to the edge of the pedestrian way that there was no way to ensure vehicles would not 
overhang the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Tahran replied they were designed according to the City standards, but if that was not adequate, so 
be it. 
 
New Condition PDC 17 was read into the record as follows, “Where parking abuts a pedestrian walkway, 
despite the presence of wheel stops, sidewalks installed by the Applicant/Owner shall be a minimum 7 
feet in width.”   



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 13 of 17  

 
Mr. Martens noted the letter received from Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue (TVF&R) and asked if the 
proposed design met their requirements.  
 
Mr. Wheeler responded it would by the time it completed the Building Division's review. As mentioned, 
Staff simply needed to include the date of the letter, September 22, 2015, in the record. Otherwise, 
everything in the letter would have been imported into table format in the conditions of approval. The 
Board needed to include the conditions as written in the letter. The TVF&R conditions did not need to be 
added piece by piece into the report to achieve the same objective. 
 
Ms. Jacobson confirmed that the Applicant, who was in the audience, had seen and reviewed the letter 
and was okay with the TVF&R conditions because the conditions in the letter would be the binding. 
 
Mr. Tahran confirmed the written conditions from TVF&R were acceptable. The Applicant had 
discussions with TVF&R, and the fire marshal usually came out with cut and dry conditions. The 
Applicant had proved that they had excessive sprinkler conditions, which lead the fire marshal to approve 
the access aisles as shown. He understood that was what the Applicant was going to get; and there would 
be no changes. 
 
Mr. Wheeler assured the TVF&R letter was distributed to both the Board and the Applicant at the same 
time. He apologized that a placeholder was not put in the conditions portion of the Staff report. They 
would have been exported into a place in the report as conditions in that form; now, they would simply be 
conditions by reference in this form. 
 
Mr. Carlson stated that when initially designed, there was no sidewalk at the upper part of Slide 12. That 
sidewalk was added because a continuous walkway was needed around. There was also a continuous 
walkway around on Town Center Lp and going around. In contrast, when he walked into City Hall for the 
meeting, he parked his car, got out, and walked around the back of the car into the building because there 
was no sidewalk. He did not believe the Applicant needed one, but they were willing to do it. It was just 
an extra burden in this situation.  
• Additionally, he noted there were 25 parking spaces at this facility. His Clackamas facility, which 

was 1½ times the size of this facility, had six parking spaces that were very seldom filled. The 
difference between the two was some people would drive in and park in the facility itself by their 
locker. If the Applicant could get by without the sidewalk, they would love to do that. He guessed 
they would just accept what was going on and do it, but it seemed in contrast to what happened when 
he walked into City Hall. 

 
Ms. Dorman suggested the Applicant might want to continue the application to think more about the 
parking lot and come back. 
 
Mr. Edmonds responded no, the Applicant had an opportunity to request a waiver to reduce the parking 
and have it addressed tonight. This was kind of late testimony to raise yet another issue to confront at 
DRB. To go back, Staff would have to renotify a waiver for parking to the surrounding property owners. 
He did not know why the Applicant was putting themselves in this position right now, because they had 
been indicating to Staff that they wanted to start construction. 
• He clarified the parking issue had been brought up before but the anticipation that it would be raised 

as an issue tonight was new. 
 
Mr. Martens understood the issue was not so much the parking, but the sidewalk. He asked if the 
sidewalk was a requirement related to parking. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 14 of 17  

Mr. Wheeler responded the sidewalk was a requirement related to ADA compliance. 
 
Ms. Dorman understood that due to that requirement, the Applicant added the parking on their own 
volition. 
 
Mr. Wheeler clarified there were two separate issues. The pedestrian sidewalks were discussed because 
the Development Code required that they not be obstructed. The parking was required because the 
Applicant had nearly 80,000 sq ft of floor area for the types of uses being proposed. The comment from 
the Applicant was that their other facilities did not have that kind of pedestrian way or that much parking 
so why was the City making them provide those. 
• He confirmed the parking had been calculated correctly. In the earlier design of the sidewalks, the 

segment on the south, which he highlighted on the drawing, was not present. The sidewalk came from 
Town Center Lp East until it hit the parking space. It came from the office, around the corner of the 
building passed the solid waste disposal area to the parking space and stopped. Staff was pleased that 
there was now a pedestrian connection, which he believed would have been caught at building permit 
anyway had it not been included as a condition because ADA required that connection from both 
streets to get to the other street. The Applicant could not count the driveway as being that route. The 
sidewalks and parking were both required for different reasons for the public good. 

 
Chair Woods confirmed there were no additional questions for the Applicant or Staff and closed the 
public hearing at 8:29 pm. 
 
Shawn O’Neil moved to adopt the Staff report as amended with the addition of new Condition PDC 
17, as read into the record, as well as Exhibit C5 dated September 22, 2015 and Exhibits B12 and 
B17. Richard Martens seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Staff provided guidance regarding the appropriate procedure to address the motion should the Board want 
to further amend the Staff report.  
 
Shawn O’Neil moved to adopt Resolution No 314 with the amended Staff report as approved. Chair 
Woods seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. O'Neil did not believe the Applicant had presented sufficient objective evidence, other than 
testimony that they have other locations outside the City of Wilsonville, to warrant a smaller solid waste 
storage area. The size should remain consistent with what Staff suggested and the Staff report stated. He 
personally did not see what was wrong with having the additional trees. It would actually improve the 
quality for the neighbors. He did not see any issues and would not want to remove those conditions. 
 
Mr. Martens understood the requirement was for more mature trees versus no trees. 
 
Mr. Wheeler clarified that the Code allowed the Board discretion to require more mature plantings when 
the structure was taller than 24 feet in height. He noted Condition PDC 3 on Page 13 of 93 of the Staff 
report stated, "The Applicant/Owner shall revise the landscape plan to provide larger or more mature 
plant materials along the property line abutting the adjacent residential facility per Section 4.176(.04)." 
 
Mr. Martens noted the landscaping plan included trees and landscaping along there. The condition just 
required them to be larger and more mature. 
 
Mr. Wheeler agreed that was correct; landscaping was proposed along that boundary. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 15 of 17  

Chair Woods said that having looked at the area, both from the senior facility and the other side, there 
were a lot of spaces where trees could be planted. It seemed to be very open, and he believed that 
specifically stating the maturity of the kinds of trees there to add more screening from that facility would 
be prudent.  
 
Mr. Wheeler confirmed Condition PDC 3 achieved that without being specific, leaving the Applicant to 
achieve that in their final Landscape Plan. 
 
Mr. O'Neil understood the Applicant wanted the Board to reconsider Conditions PDC 3 and PDC 13. 
 
Ms. Dorman agreed with retaining Condition PDC 3, but the increase in Condition PDC 13 to the 478 sq 
ft seemed excessive. 
 
Chair Woods agreed that in relation to the area, it seemed to be a lot. But in keeping with the square 
footage of the facility, he did not believe the size would be too excessive, but right in line with the 
requirements.   
 
Mr. Wheeler confirmed the exterior area of the solid waste facility would be 20 ft by 22 ft, but the 
interior space available for the containers and storage of the material would be approximately 17 ft by 22 
ft. The additional 303 sq ft required was for the interior of the structure, not its outer dimensions. 
 
Mr. Martens stated he would like to see the requirement for the additional storage space removed. And 
frankly, he believed the landscape plan, as presented, was adequate given the mature trees that were 
already present. He would like to see one or both of those conditions removed. 
 
Motion failed 2 to 2 with Richard Martens and Cheryl Dorman opposed. 
 
Richard Martens moved to approve Resolution No. 314, including the Staff report as amended, 
removing Condition PDC 13, which increased the solid waste storage area. Cheryl Dorman 
seconded the motion, which passed 3 to 1 with Shawn O’Neil opposed. 
 
Chair Woods read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 
IX. Board Member Communications None 

A. Results of the September 14, 2015 DRB Panel A meeting 
B. Discussion topic:  Paperless staff reports, exhibits and application notebook materials 

 
Blaise Edmonds, Manager, Current Planning, stated the concept of going to paperless materials was 
also discussed with DRB-Panel A. He noted people in engineering and architecture did almost everything 
paperless and used new and sophisticated applications. A couple concerns were raised about people who 
were more old school preferred the paper format. One Board member said she liked the paperless idea, but 
seeing the big notebook in the middle of her living room reminded her that she had got to look at it.  
• An agenda was distributed showing links to various agenda and application materials, including staff 

reports, elevations, and drawings were available on the City’s website. The Planning Division did not 
currently have the budget to purchase tablets for each individual commissioner, but that could possibly 
be added in the coming budget year. As Councilor Fitzgerald stated, the electronic format was working 
great for the City Councilors, who had their own tablets. 

• It was extremely expensive for developers to publish all the voluminous documents; each notebook 
cost several hundred dollars.  

• At this time, he wanted to know which Board member no longer wanted paper notebooks, so he could 
tell the developers to only print three copies, for example, rather than ten. To phase in the concept, 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 16 of 17  

those wanting them could still get paper materials until the issues were worked out and the City went 
totally paperless. 

 
The Board and Staff discussed the idea of moving to paperless staff reports, exhibits, materials, etc. with 
the following key comments: 
• Saving trees was good. 
• One challenge was to ensure all the draft paper documents were included on the CD or electronic 

format. Also, having the clarity of the electronic/online images be as clear as those on CD would be 
perfect. Even though the material was reduced, they could be blown up to see everything. 

• Going paperless was a great idea, but there would be challenges along the way, such as the need for 
commissioners to have their own portable devices. 

• The cost to produce the packets was a sticker shock. This would help the City and its customers save 
money overall.  

• Everyone assimilated information in different ways. The printed packets were overwhelming, but nice 
to make notes on and refer to during the meeting. Perhaps commissioners could use their iPad if they 
wanted and have the hard copy at the meeting to write on.  

• Over time commissioners have brought their own iPads, but the consideration was whether people 
wanted to use their private iPad for public use. Some commissioners were willing to do so for their 
convenience. 

• Being able to download the materials while travelling was very helpful.  
• If the paperless format was pursued, it would be very helpful to have the information indexed, to make 

it more user-friendly and have information more readily accessible. 
• It was set up to work exactly that way for City Council and trainings were provided to learn how to 

use the format.  
• On an iPad, assuming the right format, one could zero in on big site plans and move around.  
• One observation over the years was that commissioners do not open up their paper plans at the 

meetings to avoid hitting the microphones or spilling anything. 
• Some people, usually those who were retired, spend a lot of time reviewing the plans, but that could be 

very difficult for those with really busy careers. It was a real challenge, so Staff did their best to 
provide the summary statements, issues, conditions in the yellow pages at the front of the Staff reports 
as a starting point to spin off from and go into the plans for more detail.   

• One nice thing about the electronic format was the commissioners would receive the Staff report right 
away, which could be save a lot of problems.  

 
Mr. Edmonds noted that it seemed the consensus from both DRB Panels was that they would like to move 
to a paperless format. He would report to the Planning Director, who would need to put the items in the 
Planning budget and also consider the needs of the Planning Commission as well. 
 
Mr. O’Neil stated Staff did an excellent job setting things up, but it would be nice to be forewarned of 
potentially controversial or intense applications, based perhaps, on citizen input, so the Board would not 
feel ambushed. It would be helpful, because then they can make sure that they communicate. 
 
Mr. Edmonds explained that with the storage building tonight, the Applicant did not want to go for any 
waivers because they wanted more smooth sailing and to comply with the Code. He was surprised when 
they came and approached the Board about wanting waivers.  
 
Mr. O'Neil said he did not believe in ambushes; there were rules and people need to follow the rules. He 
understood Staff did the best they could.  
 
Ms. Dorman said tonight was the first time in four years that she had an experienced like this. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  September 28, 2015 
Minutes  Page 17 of 17  

Mr. Edmonds noted that the Phase 2 school applications which got into the site design, architecture and 
lighting could come to either Panel A or Panel B, but he could guarantee it would be controversial. 
 
X. Staff Communications 
There was none. 
 
XI. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:02 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

 
Paula Pinyerd, ABC Transcription Services, Inc. for  
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 



 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2015 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

VII. Public Hearing:   
A. Resolution No. 316.  Old Town Site Design Review for 2 

Houses:  Mark Britcliffe – Applicant for Diane Ferris – 
Owner.  The applicant is requesting approval of a Site 
Design Review for two single-family dwellings in Old 
Town.   The site is located at 30580 SW Boones Ferry 
Road on Tax Lots 3801 and 3802 of Section 23AC, T3S, 
R1W, City of Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon.  
Staff:  Jennifer Scola 

 
Case Files:  DB15-0074 – Site Design Review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 316 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 316 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS APPROVING A 
SITE DESIGN REVIEW FOR TWO SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS IN OLD 
TOWN.  THE SITE IS LOCATED AT 30580 SW BOOONES FERRY ROAD ON 
TAX LOTS 3801 AND 3802 OF SECTION 23AC, T3S-R1W, CLACKAMAS 
COUNTY; WILSONVILLE, OREGON.  MARK BRITCLIFFE – APPLICANT 
FOR DIANE FERRIS - OWNER. 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, an application, together with planning exhibits for the above-
captioned development, has been submitted in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
Section 4.008 of the Wilsonville Code, and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Staff has prepared a staff report on the above-captioned 
subject dated November 16, 2015, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning exhibits and staff reports were duly considered by the 
Development Review Board at a regularly scheduled meeting conducted on November 
23, 2015, at which time exhibits, together with findings and public testimony were 
entered into the public record, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board considered the subject and the 
recommendations contained in the staff report, and 
 
 WHEREAS, interested parties, if any, have had an opportunity to be heard on the 
subject; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board 
Panel B of the City of Wilsonville approves the request for Site Design Review for two 
single-family dwellings within the Old Town Overlay Zone, and does hereby adopt the 
staff report attached hereto as Exhibit A1 with modified findings, recommendations and 
conditions placed on the record therein and authorizes the Planning Director to issue 
approvals consistent with said recommendations for Case File:  
 

DB15-0074- Site Design Review for Two Single-Family Dwellings 
 

ADOPTED by the Development Review Board of the City of Wilsonville at a 
regular meeting thereof this 23rd day of November, 2015, and filed with the Planning 
Administrative Assistant on _______________. This resolution is final on the l5th 
calendar day after the postmarked date of the written notice of decision per WC Sec 
4.022(.09) unless appealed per WC Sec 4.022(.02) or called up for review by the council 
in accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.03). 
      
 



RESOLUTION NO. 316 
 

 
             
  Aaron Woods, Chair 

  Development Review Board, Panel B 
 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 
 



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 1 of 18 
 

Exhibit A1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

Site Design Review for Two Single-Family Dwellings 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘B’ 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 
HEARING DATE: November 23, 2015 
DATE OF REPORT: November 16, 2015  
 
 
APPLICATION NO.: DB15-0074 
  
APPLICANT: Mark Britcliffe  
 
OWNER: Diane Ferris 
 
REQUEST: The applicant proposes to develop two single-

family dwellings with accessory dwelling units, one 
per house, on two lots of record within the Old 
Town Overlay Zone 

 
LOCATION: 30580 SW Boones Ferry Road, and the parcel 

directly to the south (See Vicinity Map on Page 2) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tax Lots 3801 and 3802 Township 3 South, Range 1 

West, Section 23AC, Clackamas County, Oregon 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN DESIGNATION:             Residential 6-7 du/ac 
 
ZONING DESIGNATION: Residential Agricultural - Holding Zone (RA-H) and 

Old Town Overlay District  
 
STAFF REVIEWER: Jennifer Scola, Assistant Planner   
 
  

Page 1 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 2 of 18 
 

REQUESTED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Board is being asked to review: 

 
DB15-0074: Site Design Review for two single-family dwellings on two existing 
lots of record in the Old Town Overlay Zone. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Site Design Review Plans, together with 
recommended conditions of approval, beginning on page 4. 
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
APPLICABLE CRITERIA:  
 
Wilsonville Planning and Land Use Development Ordinance: Sections 4.001(7); 
4.002(.01); 4.008 – 4.015; 4.031(.01)(H); 4.034(.04); 4.035(.05); 4.113; 4.113(.11); 
4.120); 4.138; 4.155; 4.167; 4.171; 4.175; 4.176; 4.177; 4.178; 4.300; 4.400 – 4.450; 
4.421(.01)(A) – (G); 4.421(.02); 4.421(.03); Other Planning Documents: Old Town 
Master Plan (including Boones Ferry Historic District & Architectural Pattern Book)  
 
 
 

Page 2 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 3 of 18 
 

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Old Town Overlay is intended to capture the spirit of Wilsonville's past, and reflect it 
in new development or redevelopment. Period architecture, quality design, and 
relationship to surrounding uses, is required by this overlay. 

The Owner’s property is within the Old Town Overlay Zone, and is composed of portions 
of lots in the subdivision of Wilsonville, which was recorded in 1908.  Specifically, the 
ownership is described as all of Lot 3 and Lot 4 of Block “A”, Wilsonville.  Staff has 
determined from information gathered from the Clackamas County Assessor, that each 
of the lots is a lot of record. 

 

SUMMARY:  
 
Class 3 Site Design Review (DB15-0074): 

As demonstrated in conclusionary findings A1 through A32, the proposed Site Design 
Review Plans (i.e., architecture) for two (2) single-family dwellings, together with 
proposed conditions referenced herein, meet the City’s applicable review criteria found 
in Sections 4.138 and 4.400 – 4.450. 

 
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s analysis for compliance with the applicable review 
criteria.  Staff finds that the analysis satisfactorily demonstrates compliance with the 
Planning and Land Development Ordinance. The staff report adopts the applicant’s 
responses as Findings of Fact, except as noted in the Conclusionary Findings, and 
modified by proposed Conditions of Approval.  Based on the Findings of Fact, 
information included in this staff report, and information received at a duly advertised 
public hearing, staff recommends that the Development Review Board approve the 
proposed application (DB15-0074), together with the following conditions:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 3 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 4 of 18 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:  

 
The application and supporting documents are hereby adopted for approval with the 
following conditions:  
 
PD  = 

 
Planning Division 
Conditions 
 

A.  DB15-0074: Site Design Review  
 

 
 

Planning Division Conditions: 

DB15-0074:  Class 3 Site Design Review 

PDA 1.  The Applicant/Owner shall develop the proposed dwellings in substantial 
compliance with the Site Design Review plans approved by the DRB, unless altered with 
Board approval, or minor revisions are approved by the Planning Director under a Class I 
administrative review process. 

PDA 2.  The Applicant/Owner shall submit a landscape plan to assure that each lot of 
record is developed with a minimum of 15 percent landscape, per Section 4.138(.03)(C). 

PDA 3.  The Applicant/Owner shall screen proposed driveways from view from abutting 
lots, as required by Section 4.155(.03)(B)(1). 

PDA 4.  The Applicant/Owner shall install all utilities underground, as required by 
Section 4.320. 
 

MASTER EXHIBITS LIST: 

 
The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development 
Review Board as confirmation of its consideration of the application as submitted. This 
is the master exhibits list that includes exhibits for Planning Case File DB15-0074. 
 
A. Staff’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 A1.  Staff Report, including: 
 Findings of Fact  
 Proposed Conditions of Approval  
 Conclusionary Findings  
       A2.  Staff PowerPoint Presentation 
 
 

Page 4 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 5 of 18 
 

B. Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 B1.  Application Form 
 B2.  Applicant’s Narrative and Findings 
 B3.  Elevations for Each House 
   a.  House #1 
   b.  House #2 
 B4. Color & Materials – House #1 (Too Large to Reproduce) 
 B5.  Color & Materials – House #2 (Too Large to Reproduce) 
 
C. General Correspondence: 
 C1.  Letters (neither For nor Against): None submitted 

C2.  Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
C3.  Letters (Opposed): None submitted 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. Statutory Timeline: The statutory 120-day time limit applies to this application. 

The application was received on September 18, 2015.  On October 2, 2015, staff 
conducted a completeness review within the statutorily allowed 30-day review 
period and deemed the application incomplete.  On October 8, 2015 the Applicant 
submitted additional materials for the application. On October 20, 2015, the 
application was deemed complete.  The City must render a final decision for the 
request, including any appeals, by February 17, 2016. 
 

2. Adjacent land uses: 

 
3. Comprehensive Plan and Zone Maps: The site has a Comprehensive Plan 

designation of Residential 6-7 du/ac, and is zoned Residential Agricultural - Holding 
Zone (RA-H).  

 
4. Natural Characteristics: The subject premises have gently flat terrain.  

Vegetation is limited to existing landscape.  
 
5. Streets: The subject property is located on the east side of SW Boones Ferry Road, 

north of SW Fifth Street.  Access to the site is from SW Boones Ferry Road.   
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  RA-H Single-Family home 
East:  RA-H Single-Family homes (2) 
South:  RA-H Single-Family home  
West:  PDI Commercial Development / Mini Storage Facility 

Page 5 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 6 of 18 
 

6. Review Procedures: The required public notices have been sent and all proper 
notification procedures have been satisfied.  

 
7. Previous land use approvals: The subject property is composed of Lot 3 and Lot 

4 of Block “A” of the original subdivision plat of Wilsonville, recorded in 1908.  
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
 

Section 4.001(7). Definitions – Accessory Dwelling Unit. 
 
1. Accessory Dwelling Unit: A dwelling unit of not more than 800 square feet on the 
same lot as a single family dwelling, and being of substantially the same exterior design 
as that single family dwelling, whether attached or detached. The Applicant is proposing 
two attached Accessory Dwelling Units, both at 786 square feet.  
 
Section 4.008. Application Procedures - In General. 
 
2. The applicant is requesting the site development permit application necessary to re-
develop Tax Lots 3801 and 3802 of Section 23AC; T3S R1W; Clackamas County, Oregon.  
The applicant proposes to remove an existing garage on Tax Lot 3801, and replace it 
with one single-family home, and to construct one single-family home on the vacant lot 
directly south of it (Tax Lot 3802); each a legal lot of record within the Old Town Overlay 
Zone.   
 
Section 4.009. Who May Initiate Applications 
 
3. The application has been submitted by Mark Britcliffe, the Authorized Representative 
of owner of the subject property, Diane Ferris.  This provision is met.  
 
Section 4.014. Burden of Proof 
 
The burden of proving that the necessary findings of fact can be made for approval of 
any land use or development application rests with the applicant in the case.  In the 
case of an appeal, the burden of proof rests with the appellant. 
 
4. The applicant has submitted the referenced materials in support of the Site Design 
Review of the subject property.  Staff has supplemented that submittal with evidence 
obtained from the Clackamas County Assessor’s Office.  In the event of a challenge to 
any of the conclusions reached in this report, the applicant bears the burden of proof in 
satisfying applicable criteria.  This provision is met.  
 

Page 6 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 7 of 18 
 

 
REQUEST A:  DB15-0074 - SITE DESIGN REVIEW 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 
 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of Site Design Review for two single-family 
dwellings on two legal lots of record in the Old Town Overlay Zone.  
 
Section 4.120 RA-H (Residential Agricultural – Holding) Zone 

 (.02)  Uses permitted Outright:  
B. One single-family dwelling unit…per lot 

A1. The proposal is for two-single family dwellings and one Accessory Dwelling Unit 
(ADU) per house, on two existing lots of record, as permitted by the provisions of 
this section.   

(.05) Off-Street Parking Requirements  

A2. The Applicant proposes to meet the requirements of Sections 4.155, as 
demonstrated beginning on page 16 of this report. Each house contains garage 
parking for three cars, as well as two off-street parking spaces, which is adequate 
parking for the houses and the ADUs.  

Section 4.113 Standards Applying to Residential Developments in Any Zone.  

Setbacks prescribed by this section are superseded by the provisions of the RA-H zone, 
reviewed next, below.   

Section 4.113(.11) Accessory Dwelling Units Accessory Dwelling Units. 
 

A. Accessory Dwelling Units, developed on the same lot as the detached or 
attached single-family dwelling to which it is accessory, shall be permitted 
outright, subject to the standards and requirements of this Section. 
 

       B. Standards 
1. One Accessory Dwelling Unit per lot shall be no greater than 800 square     

feet with not more than two bedrooms, unless the size and density of 
ADUs are otherwise provided in an adopted Neighborhood Plan or Stage 
II Development Plans. Larger units shall be subject to standards applied 
to duplex housing. 

 
2. Accessory Dwelling Units may be either attached or detached, but are 

subject to all zone standards for setbacks, height, and lot coverage, 
unless those requirements are specifically waived through the Planned 
Development waiver or Variance approval processes. 

Page 7 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 8 of 18 
 

3. This Section applies to residential developments in PD-R, R, RA-H, or 
Village zones. 

 
4. Where an Accessory Dwelling Unit is proposed to be added to an existing 

residence and no discretionary land use approval is being sought (e.g., 
Planned Development approval, Conditional Use Permit approval, etc.) 
the application shall require the approval of a Class I Administrative 
Review permit. Application for duplex construction shall be subject to the 
density standards of the zone in which it is located, or as otherwise 
provided in a Neighborhood Plan or Stage II/Final Development Plan. 

 
5. Authorization to develop Accessory Dwelling Units does not waive 

Building Code requirements. Increased firewalls or building separation 
may be required as a means of assuring adequate fire separation from 
one unit to the next. Applicants are encouraged to contact, and work 
closely with, the Building Division of the City’s Community Development 
Department to assure that Building Code requirements are adequately 
addressed. 

 
6. The Accessory Dwelling Unit must be of substantially the same exterior 

design and architecture (i.e. siding, windows, doors and roofing 
materials) as the primary dwelling unit on the property. 

 

7. Parking:  

a. Each Accessory Dwelling Unit shall have one standard sized parking 
space on the same lot. 

     b. Where an off-street parking space is not available to serve the ADU, 
on-street parking may be considered to satisfy this requirement if all of 
the following are present: 

i. On-street parking exists along the frontage of the lot, or within   
100’ of the front lot line of the lot. 

ii. No more than 25% of the lots in a block will have ADUs. 

      8. Each Accessory Dwelling Unit shall provide complete, independent 
permanent facilities for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, bathing and 
sanitation purposes, and shall have its own separate secure entrance. 

     9. Each Accessory Dwelling Unit must be accessible by street or driveway to 
fire and emergency vehicles, and for trash pick-up. 

A3. The Applicant proposes to meet the requirements of Section 4.113(.11). Each 
ADU is enclosed within the main house, is 786 square feet in size, and has at 

Page 8 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 9 of 18 
 

least one off-street parking space on site.  The provisions of this section are 
satisfied. 

Section 4.120 Zones.  RA-H Residential Agricultural - Holding Zone 

(.04) Dimensional Standards: 

A. Minimum Lot Size:  30,000 square feet. 

B. Minimum Front and Rear Yard Setbacks:  Thirty (30) feet.  Minimum 
Side Yard Setback:  Ten (10) feet. 
1. Legal, non-conforming RA-H lots in the Old Town Overlay Zone shall 

have the following setbacks: 
a. Front:  Ten (10) feet for single family dwellings, for all other uses: 

none; 
b. Rear:  Fifteen (15) feet; 
c. Side:  Five (5) feet.  

2. Minimum setback for residential garage or carport:  At least five (5) 
feet behind the front of the nearest residential unit on the property.  
In no case shall the front of a garage or carport be located less than 
twenty (20) feet behind a sidewalk or a public right-of-way 
providing access to that garage or carport.  Except, however, in the 
case of an alley where garages or carports are located within five (5) 
feet of the property line adjoining the alley.  [Amended by Ord. 682, 
9/9/10] 

A4. The applicant is proposing to build two single-family dwellings, each on their 
own lot of record.  Each dwelling is proposed to comply with the setbacks and 
maximum height for lots of record required in Subsection 4.120(.04)(B)(1), above 
(Exhibit B2). Staff finds these criteria will be met. 

A5. Staff finds that the RA-H zone is not subject to a maximum lot coverage 
limitation. 

 
Section 4.138: Old Town (O) Overlay Zone 
 
(.01)  Purpose 
 

The Old Town Overlay is intended to capture the spirit of Wilsonville's past, and 
reflect it in new development or redevelopment. Period architecture, quality 
design, and relationship to surrounding uses, is required by this overlay. 
 
The applicant's proposal has achieved all of these purposes, using details from 
the early 1900's, and thoughtful consideration of the site's resources, and 
provided ample links to the surrounding neighborhood. 

Page 9 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 10 of 18 
 

 
A. The standards of the “O” overlay zone are intended to assure that, 

through the appropriate use of architectural details, windows, building 
orientation, facades, and construction materials, new structures, and 
major alterations of existing structures, create a pleasing and 
pedestrian-friendly environment.  

B. It is the desire of the City to have buildings in the “O” overlay zone 
reflect a range of architectural types and styles that were popular in the 
Willamette Valley from approximately 1880 to 1930.  The following 
design standards are intended to further define those characteristics 
that will convey the desired architecture. 

C. These standards are intended to encourage quality design, to enhance 
public safety, and to provide a comfortable and attractive street 
environment by providing features and amenities of value to 
pedestrians.  Quality design will result in an arrangement of buildings 
that are in visual harmony with one-another, leading to a neighborhood 
that is vital, interesting, attractive, and safe.  These qualities contribute 
to the health and vitality of the overall community. 

D. These standards shall be used by the City's Planning Department and 
Development Review Board in reviewing development applications 
within the Old Town neighborhood.  

 
(.02) The “O” Overlay zone shall be applied in conjunction with the underlying base 

zones in the Old Town neighborhood. 
 

A. The following shall require site design review for conformance with 
these standards: 

   
1. New building construction and the substantial redevelopment of 

existing buildings, including the construction of new single 
family dwellings; 

 

A6. The applicant has applied the Site Design Review provisions of this overlay zone 
to the two proposed single-family dwellings, as will be demonstrated in the 
findings, below. 

 
(.03) Development standards 

A. Lot area, width, depth - As specified in the underlying base zone.  Single 
family and two-family dwelling units, other than those on lots fronting 
Boones Ferry Road, shall be subject to the following minimum setbacks: 

Page 10 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 11 of 18 
 

1. Front and rear yard: 15 feet; 
2. Street side of corner lots: 10 feet; 
3. Other side yards:   5 feet. 

A7. The setbacks in this subsection conflict with, and are superseded by those of the 
underlying RA-H zone, especially for lots of record, which are reviewed on page 9 
of this report. 
B. …residential garages or carports shall be set back a minimum of twenty 

(20) feet from any sidewalk or traveled portion of a street across which 
access to the garage or carport is taken.   

A8. The applicant proposes to comply with this requirement for each of the two 
proposed single-family dwellings.  The garage for each lot is proposed to be 25’ 
from the front property line. 

 
C. Landscaping - Not less than fifteen (15) percent of the development site 

shall be landscaped.  In the event that a building is set back from a 
street side property line, along Boones Ferry Road, Bailey Street, or 5th 
Street, the intervening area shall be landscaped.  In reviewing proposals 
for parking lots in locations between buildings and streets, the 
Development Review Board may require special landscaping treatments 
or designs to screen the view of the parking lot from the public right-of-
way. 

A9. The applicant has not provided a landscape plan for the two lots, but the 
footprint of each dwelling leaves an adequate area on each lot to achieve 
compliance for each of the two proposed single-family dwellings. A landscape 
plan shall be required prior to obtaining building permits, per Condition PDA 2. 

 
D. Building height - As specified in the underlying base zone. 

 
A10. The RA-H zone allows a maximum building height of 35 feet.  The applicant 

proposes to be in compliance with the maximum building height.  The proposed 
two-story dwelling on Tax Lot 3801 will be 23’-6” and 25’-6” on Tax Lot 3802.  

 
(.04)  Pedestrian environment.  In order to enhance the pedestrian scale of the 

neighborhood: 
 

A.  Special attention shall be given to the primary building entrances, assuring 
that they are both attractive and functional.  

 
D.  …For smaller lots, which may not have functional alternatives for parking, 

up to 40% of lot frontage may be used for parking, provided that 

Page 11 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 12 of 18 
 

appropriate screening and visual enhancement is created between the 
parking area and the sidewalk… 

 
A11. The applicant proposes the two single-family dwelling entrances to face Boones 

Ferry Road, to give special attention to the primary building entrances, and 
assure that they are both attractive and functional. Each dwelling will have 
raised masonry porches and raised paneled doors. The porch on Tax Lot 3801 
will have 8 x 8 posts and a railing around the entrance. The porch on Tax Lot 
3802 will contain 12 x 12 tapered columns and wood railings as well. Staff finds 
the proposal to be in compliance with this requirement. 

 
(.05) Building compatibility 
 

A. The design and materials of proposed buildings shall reflect the 
architectural styles of the Willamette Valley during the period from 
1880 to 1930. 

B. Commercial and manufacturing buildings shall be designed to reflect 
the types of masonry or wood storefront buildings that were typical in 
the period from 1880 to 1930.  Larger modern buildings shall be 
designed with facades that are divided to give the appearance of a 
series of smaller buildings or distinctive store fronts, and/or multi-
storied structures with, at least, the appearance of second stories. 

C. Residential buildings shall be designed to reflect the size and shape of 
traditional dwellings from the period from 1880 to 1930.  Where larger 
multiple family residential buildings are proposed, their building 
facades shall be divided into units that give the appearance of a series 
of smaller dwellings. 

A12. The proposal includes two-single family dwellings and two ADUs. The design of 
the residential dwellings is intended to reflect the size and shape of traditional 
dwellings from the period from 1880 to 1930 and both are two-story dwellings.  
The applicant is proposing one Colonial-style home (Tax Lot 3801) and one 
Craftsman-style home (Tax Lot 3802).  The applicant has incorporated many of 
the Residential Design Standards suggested within the Boones Ferry Historic 
District Architectural Pattern Book.  Therefore, staff finds that the building 
compatibility requirements have been met. 

 
(.06) Building materials 

A. Facades shall be varied and articulated to provide visual interest to 
pedestrians.  Within larger developments, variations in facades, floor 
levels, architectural features, and/or exterior finishes shall be used to 
create the appearance of a series of smaller buildings. 

Page 12 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 13 of 18 
 

B. Exterior building materials shall be durable, and shall convey a visual 
impression of durability.  Materials such as masonry, stone, stucco, and 
wood will generally provide such an appearance.  Other materials that 
replicate the appearance of those durable materials may also be used.  

C. Where masonry is to be used for exterior finish, varied patterns are to 
be incorporated to break up the appearance of larger surfaces.   

D. Wood siding is to be bevel, shingle siding or channel siding or the 
equivalent.  T-111 and similar sheathed siding shall not be used unless it 
is incorporated with batten treatment to give the appearance of boards. 

E. Exterior materials and colors are to match the architecture of the 
period.   

 
A13. The proposed dwelling located on Tax Lot 3801 is a Colonial-styled home with 8 x 

8 vertical pillars on the front porch. This dwelling will also be clad with 4-inch-
wide horizontal plank siding with wood grain, double hung windows, and rough 
sawn wood trim. Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance with these 
requirements. 

 
A14. The proposed dwelling located on Tax Lot 3802 is a Craftsman-style home with 

an articulated appearance. The applicant is proposing the use of 8-inch-wide 
horizontal plank siding with wood grain, double hung windows, and rough sawn 
wood trim. The dwelling also features a raised masonry front porch with 12 x 12 
tapered columns and wood railings. Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance 
with these requirements. 

 
(.07) Roof materials, design 

A. Pitched roof structures shall have a minimum pitch of 4:12. 

B. Roofs with a pitch of less than 4:12 are permitted, provided that they 
have detailed, stepped parapets or detailed masonry coursing. 

C. Parapet corners are to be stepped.  Parapets are to be designed to 
emphasize the center entrance or primary entrance(s). 

D. Sloped roofs that will be visible from the adjoining street right-of-way 
shall be of a dark, non-ornamental color. 

E. Preferred roofing materials that are visible from a public street include 
wood or architectural grade composition shingle, tile, or metal with 
standing or batten seams.  Metal roofs without raised seams shall not 
be used in visible locations. 

 

Page 13 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 14 of 18 
 

A15. The applicant is proposing a 5/12 pitch roof for the Colonial-styled home on Tax 
Lot 3801, with asphalt shingles to mimic shake roofing, which was often used in 
the Mid-Willamette Valley between 1880 and 1930 (shown on the materials 
board for that dwelling, Exhibit B4).  Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance 
with this requirement. 

 
A16. The applicant is proposing a 7/12 pitch roof for the Craftsman-styled home on 

Tax Lot 3802, with asphalt shingles to mimic shake roofing, which was often used 
in the Mid-Willamette Valley between 1880 and 1930 (shown on the materials 
board for that dwelling, Exhibit B5).  Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance 
with this requirement. 

 
(.09) Building facades 
 
 A. Ornamental devices, such as moldings, entablature, and friezes, are 

encouraged at building roof lines.  Where such ornamentation is to be in the 
form of a linear molding or board, it shall match or complement the 
architecture of the building. 

 
E. Buildings are to have variations in relief, including such things as cornices, 

bases, fenestration, fluted masonry, and other aesthetic treatments to 
enhance pedestrian interest. 
 

A17. The Colonial-style dwelling has a covered front porch with a hip roof.  Each 
entrance to the dwelling is surrounded by rough sawn wood trim. Staff finds the 
proposed dwelling on Tax Lot 3801 to be in compliance with this requirement. 
 

A18. The applicant proposes a covered porch for the Craftsman-style single-family 
dwelling.  This dwelling has a covered front porch roof, tapered columns and 
shake-texture gable roof accents above the entrance and on the upper story.  
Staff finds the proposed dwelling on Lot 3802 to be in compliance with this 
requirement. 

 

(.10) Windows in buildings adjacent to Boones Ferry Road 

A. Windows shall include amenities such as bottom sills, pediments, or 
awnings.  Glass curtain walls, highly reflective glass, and painted or darkly 
tinted glass are not permitted other than stained or leaded glass. 

 
A19. The applicant has proposed simple, double-hung windows in the Colonial-styled 

dwelling on Tax Lot 3801. 
 

Page 14 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 15 of 18 
 

A20. The applicant has proposed simple, double-hung windows in the Craftsman-
styled dwelling on Tax Lot 3802. 
 

A21. Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance with this requirement. 
 
(.12) Lighting 

B. Exterior lighting is to be an integral part of the architectural design and 
must complement the street lighting of the area, unless it is located at 
the side or rear of buildings in locations that are not facing a public 
street that is not an alley. 

C. In no case is lighting to produce glare on neighboring properties or 
public rights-of-way such that a nuisance or safety hazard results. 

 

A22. The applicant has not illustrated proposed building lighting for either of the two 
dwellings.  The absence of this missing item can be addressed through a 
condition of this action, if approved.  Staff finds that by imposing such a 
condition, the applicant’s proposal will comply with the provisions of this 
subsection.  

 
Section 4.155 General Regulations – Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking 
 
(.02) General Provisions: 
 

A. The provision and maintenance of off-street parking spaces is a 
continuing obligation of the property owner.  The standards set forth 
herein shall be considered by the Development Review Board as 
minimum criteria. 

 
A23. The existing lots of record each have frontage on SW Boones Ferry Road.  The 

applicant proposes one driveway to access each of the two proposed single-
family dwellings, and three parking spaces within each of the proposed garages 
(one single space, and one tandem space).  The exterior of each dwelling will 
have the appearance of a two-car garage. No on-street parking is proposed.  
Staff finds the applicant has proposed off-street parking in compliance with the 
requirement.  

 
(.03) Minimum and Maximum Off-Street Parking Requirements:  
 

A. Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be designed with access and 
maneuvering area adequate to serve the functional needs of the site 
and shall: 

Page 15 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 16 of 18 
 

1. Separate loading and delivery areas and circulation from 
customer and/or employee parking and pedestrian areas.  
Circulation patterns shall be clearly marked. 

2. To the greatest extent possible, separate vehicle and pedestrian 
traffic.  

 
A24. The subject lots of record each have frontage on SW Boones Ferry Road.  The 

applicant proposes one driveway to access each of the proposed single-family 
dwellings, and three parking spaces (one single space, and one tandem space) 
within each of the proposed garages.  No on-street parking is proposed.  Staff 
finds the applicant has proposed off-street parking in compliance with the 
requirement.  

 
B.  Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be landscaped to minimize 

the visual dominance of the parking or loading area, as follows: 
  

1. Landscaping of at least ten percent (10%) of the parking area 
designed to be screened from view from the public right-of-way 
and adjacent properties.  This landscaping shall be considered to 
be part of the fifteen percent (15%) total landscaping required in 
Section 4.176.03 for the site development. 

 
A25. The proposal does not include or require off-street loading areas.  The parking 

areas (i.e., driveways) will be required to be screened from the abutting lots to 
the north and south.  Through the imposition of proposed condition PDA 3, this 
criterion can be satisfied. 

 
  G. Parking Standards 

 
 

A26. Based upon the table above, the applicant is required to provide one (1) parking 
space for each single-family dwelling and one (1) parking space per ADU.  The 
applicant is proposing three (3) garage spaces and two (2) off-street parking 
spaces for each lot of record.  Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance with 
this requirement. 

Page 16 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 17 of 18 
 

 
Section 4.320 Underground Utilities 

 
A27. Condition of Approval PDA 4 will ensure all utilities be installed underground, 

where possible. 
 
Section 4.421 Criteria and Application of Design Standards  
 

(.01)  The following standards shall be utilized by the Board in reviewing the 
plans, drawings, sketches and other documents required for Site Design 
Review.  These standards are intended to provide a frame of reference for 
the applicant in the development of site and building plans as well as a 
method of review for the Board.  These standards shall not be regarded as 
inflexible requirements.  They are not intended to discourage creativity, 
invention and innovation.  The specifications of one or more particular 
architectural styles is not included in these standards.  (Even in the Boones 
Ferry Overlay Zone, a range of architectural styles will be encouraged.) 

 
 

A. Preservation of Landscape 
 
A28. A landscape plan was not provided as part of the applicant’s submitted 

materials. The applicant will be required to submit a landscape plan, in order to 
comply with the provisions of Section 4.138(.03)(C).  See proposed Condition 
PDA 2.  As a result of this requirement, this criterion is satisfied. 

 
B. Relation of Proposed Buildings to Environment 
 

A29. Staff finds that the subject property does not contain steep slopes, is not within 
a Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ), and has very little vegetation.  This 
criterion is satisfied.   

 
C. Drives, Parking and Circulation 
 

A30. A review of Section 4.155, beginning on page 16, above, provides a detailed 
discussion regarding drives, parking and circulation.  

 
D. Surface Water Drainage 
 

A31. Surface water drainage requirements will be reviewed and enforced with the 
building permit for each proposed dwelling. 

Page 17 of 52



Development Review Board  Staff Report November 16, 2015 
DB15-0074  Page 18 of 18 
 

E. Utility Service 
 

A32. Condition of Approval PDA 4 will ensure all utilities be installed underground, 
where possible. 

 
SUMMARY FINDING FOR DB15-0074 – Site Design Review: 
 
A33. Except where noted in the analysis, above, the applicant has borne the burden of 

proof in demonstrating that the proposed Site Design Review plans for the two 
proposed dwellings satisfy applicable review criteria.  As a result, the Site Design 
Review plans for the two proposed dwellings should be approved, subject to the 
proposed conditions of approval, beginning on page 4 of this report.   

Page 18 of 52



09/18/2015 14:85 5035370C) L~ZERQUICK PAGE 02

• .• ., Planning ~0u•
Developmenl Permit Apphcatson

~qutred vnWe 120
ch~e in n~co,dLew~IWth proii1~loni ofORB 227.175. .

• ••.• .Aprc~pp1kii#on con! âirOSi1bmIi~1GfWL

a~hceWo~i.~

Inp~pr~~.w1n~ &kI)tg~caWalioffhi
r.qiwwd Isiuwsu~.nIUe4

Authorized Represenlatlve

Addrew

Phone:

Pax:

E-mail:

Site LocatIon and Deecdptlou:
prujcctMdressifAvaIlab)e: 3o5~Q SW BQ,t16S F&c~.’ ~ — •_Suita~Unit

p~jectLocalion:~ ç3~3ACO3~QL.0LJ’d -—

Tax Map a(s); . Tax L~t~(a):l~.~L ~4.~1F~C ~3ga~ ~c~ty a w ngton Clackainas

R~ue~S~*i~- ~ç~s:~ ~

~&e4~’ i~,è~/’i.

P,ijiiect Type: Class I U a Class IflW~
j4esidenlizl a Commercial a ~ndusuial a Other (dc~cribe below)
Application ‘I’ype
a A~me~catiOfl
a Final Flat
a Plan Amendment
o Request &ir Special Meeting
o SROZ1SRIR Review
a Type C Tree Removal Finn
a V~Nebois SAP
a Zone Map Amendment

a Appeal
a Major Partition
a Planned Development
o Rcqust for Time Extension
o Staff Interpretation
0 ~ne Ee*DOYaJ Permit (3 orC)
r~ ViUebois FDP
oOther

o Camp Plan Map Ameud
a Minor Partition
o Prcliniiuery Pint
o Signs
ci StagolMester Plan
a Temporary tise
a ViUebois PD?

o Conditional Use
o Paiis Plan Review
ci Raque~1 to Modif~’ Cooditin~
kSite Deatgn Review
a Stage II Final Plan
a Variance
a Waiver

City of Wilsonville
EXHIBIT Bi DB15-0074

0 VI SO1’WILLE
2999 SW TownCenL~ Loop East

Wijsanvjlle~OR 97070
Plione:.503.682,4960
Fá: 503.6827025

Web:~~w~ci.w.iJsonviIle.or.u~

• .•. •• P~e-A~plication meeting date:

•TOBE C MPLY~TEDBY APPICM4T~.
~Pka~PPNT1qihfr~. •••• :

Applicant:

rr~c’~. 4 t~jc\°~ Ere r~l~-$~
Address: ~7%~ S C~~• .,~274dc C 1Z,.

Phone: 5?) ~ - c74~77ôo
Fax ≤~ ~L7zf~~~ ~?~7
E-mail: ~ @, o a -

Property Owner:

~~$

~ i~ C.r~ Crpk. 81?. ‘%JUA6~,Of~

Thone: ~.~5~3B-5Rb~

Fax: .-9-~•

E-mail: fe~-iS~~aiw.~i.r4en’

Pro er’s Signature:

- ~

Printed Nemet ~ ~ A~i~Date: ~ J9 ~‘~l$

Ap~Slgna~ (if4fferunifron, Fs~,peri~v Owner):

Printed Namet ~ irz~L-U~ Date~) - L’- 24

-C,r ~ ~

Page 19 of 52



I. INTRODUCTION

General Information

Property Owner! Applicant Mark and Dana Bnitcilife

27485 sw Xanthus Ct

Sherwood, Or.

Phone: 503-516-7700

E-mail: markebrit@yahoo.com

Tax Lot Information Lots 30801 and 30102 on Map 31W23DB

Location 30580 SW Boones Ferry Road

Wilsonville, Oregon

Current Zoning Districts RA-H with (0) Overlay

Comprehensive Plan Area F — “Old Town”

Project Site Area Approximately 10,000 SF

II. SUMMARY

We are proposing 1 home with an attached ADU on each separate tax lot

Total lot coverage: 46%

City of Wilsonville
EXHIBIT B2 DB15-0074

Page 20 of 52



II. SITE DESIGN HOUSE #1/COMPLIANCE

Requirement standards of RA-H zoning.

Section 4.138. Old Town (0) Overlay Zone.

(.01) Purpose. The purpose of this overlay zone is to establish the design standards that

will be applied to developments within the Old Town neighborhood, mapped as the

Boones Ferry District in the City’s West Side Master Plan. The following purpose

statement is not intended as a set of additional permit criteria. Rather, it is a description

of the desired outcome as development occurs incrementally, over time. This overlay

district is intended to create a modern interpretation of a traditional old town Main

Street and mixed use neighborhood. It is recognized that the Old Town neighborhood

is of unique significance because of its existing pattern of mixed uses, its access to the

Willamette River and because it was the original center of housing. The standards of the “0” overlay
zone are intended to assure that, through the

appropriate use of architectural details, windows, building orientation, facades, and

construction materials, new structures, and major alterations of existing structures,

create a pleasing and pedestrian-friendly environment.

B. It is the desire of the City to have buildings in the “0” overlay zone reflect a range of

architectural types and styles that were popular in the Willamette Valley from

approximately 1880 to 1930. The following design standards are intended to further

define those characteristics that will convey the desired architecture.

C. These standards are intended to encourage quality design, to enhance public

safety, and to provide a comfortable and attractive street environment by providing

features and amenities of value to pedestrians. Quality design will result in an

arrangement of buildings that are in visual harmony with one-another, leading to a

neighborhood that is vital, interesting, attractive, and safe. These qualities

contribute to the health and vitality of the overall community.

D. These standards shall be used by the City’s Planning Department and Development

Review Board in reviewing development applications within the Old Town

neighborhood.

Page 21 of 52



Findings: The Colonial architectural style implemented in the design and details of

the proposed structure reflect a style popular in the Willamette Valley in the time

II. SITE DESIGN HOUSE #1

Section 4.138. Old Town (0) Overlay Zone.

(.01) Purpose. The purpose of this overlay zone is to establish the design standards that

will be applied to developments within the Old Town neighborhood, mapped as the

Boones Ferry District in the City’s West Side Master Plan. The following purpose

statement is not intended as a set of additional permit criteria. Rather, it is a description

of the desired outcome as development occurs incrementally, over time. This overlay

district is intended to create a modern interpretation of a traditional old town Main

Street and mixed use neighborhood. It is recognized that the Old Town neighborhood

is of unique significance because of its existing pattern of mixed uses, its access to the

Willamette River and because it was the original center of housing and commerce for

the community.

A. The standards of the “0” overlay zone are intended to assure that, through the

appropriate use of architectural details, windows, building orientation, facades, and

construction materials, new structures, and major alterations of existing structures,

create a pleasing and pedestrian-friendly environment.

B. It is the desire of the City to have buildings in the “0” overlay zone reflect a range of

architectural types and styles that were popular in the Willamette Valley from

approximately 1880 to 1930. The following design standards are intended to further

define those characteristics that will convey the desired architecture.

C. These standards are intended to encourage quality design, to enhance public

safety, and to provide a comfortable and attractive street environment by providing

features and amenities of value to pedestrians. Quality design will result in an

arrangement of buildings that are in visual harmony with one-another, leading to a

neighborhood that is vital, interesting, attractive, and safe. These qualities

contribute to the health and vitality of the overall community.

D. These standards shall be used by the City’s Planning Department and Development

Page 22 of 52



Review Board in reviewing development applications within the Old Town

neighborhood.

Findings: The Colonial architectural style implemented in the design and details of

the proposed structure reflect a style popular in the Willamette Valley in the time

range referred to.

(.02) The “0” Overlay zone shall be applied in conjunction with the underlying base zones

in the Old Town neighborhood.

A. The following shall require site design review for conformance with these standards:

1. New building construction and the substantial redevelopment of existing

buildings, including the construction of new single family dwellings; and

2. Any exterior remodeling that requires a building permit, when that remodeling is

visible from a public street (other than an alley).

Response: The current zone is RA-H. A single-family home with attached ADU is a permitted use of RA-H

zone. This lot of recordTs lot size is 5,000 SF. Minimum required lot size is 30,000

SF so this lot of record qualifies as a legal, non-conforming RA-H lot with setbacks

per Section 4.120(.04)B.1.

B. Except, however, that exterior remodeling of residential units other than those facing

Boones Ferry Road shall be reviewed through the Class I Administrative Review

procedures of Sections 4.009 through 4.012. This review will be applied only to the

portions of buildings that are visible from public streets (not including alleys) and is

intended to assure that the design of the portion of the building being remodeled

will either match the standards of the Old Town Overlay Zone or be consistent with

the existing design of the structure.

Findings: This proposal is for a new construction, so this section does not apply.

C. Those proposing to build or remodel the exterior of any building in the area are

encouraged to contact the City about the availability of funds for historic façade

treatment.

Findings: The Applicant has contacted the city in regards to this issue

Page 23 of 52



(.03) Development standards.

A. Lot area, width, depth - As specified in the underlying base zone. Single family and

two-family dwelling units, other than those on lots fronting Boones Ferry Road, shall

be subject to the following minimum setbacks:

1. Front and rear yard: 15 feet;

2. Street side of corner lots: 10 feet;

3. Other side yards: 5 feeet

Findings: Since the proposed lot fronts Boones Ferry Road, this is not applicable.

B. Building Setbacks - Buildings fronting Boones Ferry Road shall abut the public

sidewalk except where public plazas, courtyards, approved landscaping, or other

public pedestrian amenities are approved. Except, however, that residential

garages or carports shall be set back a minimum of twenty (20) feet from any

sidewalk or traveled portion of a street across which access to the garage or

carport is taken. The Development Review Board may approve other setbacks to

accommodate sidewalks, landscaping, or other streetscape features located

between the street right-of-way and the building.

Findings: Garage has 25’ setback

C. Landscaping - Not less than fifteen (15) percent of the development site shall be

landscaped. In the event that a building is set back from a street side property line,

along Boones Ferry Road, Bailey Street, or 5th Street, the intervening area shall be

landscaped. In reviewing proposals for parking lots in locations between buildings

and streets, the Development Review Board may require special landscaping

treatments or designs to screen the view of the parking lot from the public right-ofway.

D. Building height - As specified in the underlying base zone.

Findings: RA-H allows 35~ MAX building height, we are proposing 23-6” building height per
attached drawings. Applicant will landscape the front yard.

E. Street access to Boones Ferry Road. Ingress and egress points along Boones Ferry

Road shall be designed and constructed such that access points on one side of the

road shall coordinate with access points on the other side of the road. New

Page 24 of 52



developments along Boones Ferry Road and north of Bailey Street will have access

points designed and constructed in a pattern that replicates the shape of Main

Street blocks.

Findings: There are no access points to the properties across the street.

(.04) Pedestrian environment. In order to enhance the pedestrian scale of the

neighborhood:

A Special attention shall be given to the primary building entrances, assuring that they

are both attractive and functional.

Findings: We propose a prominent raised front porch with 8x8 posts and wood railings. The
front door will be a raised paneled door typical of the targeted time period.

B. The pedestrian environment shall be enhanced by amenities such as street

furniture, landscaping, awnings, and movable planters with flowers, as required by

the Development Review Board.

C. Sidewalk width may vary from block to block, depending upon the nature of adjacent

land uses and the setbacks of existing buildings. Provided, however, that a

continuity of streetscape design is maintained along Boones Ferry Road, generally

following the pattern that has been started with the 1996 approval for Old Town

Village on the west side of Boones Ferry Road from Fourth Street to Fifth Street.

[Amended by Ordinance No. 538, 2/21/02.]

1. North of Bailey Street, where the most intense commercial development is

anticipated, the widest sidewalks and most mature landscaping are required.

2. In situations where existing buildings are located at the right-of-way line, special

sidewalk designs may be necessary to assure pedestrian access.

Findings: not applicable.

D. When practicable, buildings along Boones Ferry Road shall occupy 100% of the

street frontage between block segments. Up to 25% of street frontage may be in

public plazas, courtyards, and similar landscape or streetscape features that

provide public spaces adjacent to the sidewalk. For smaller lots, which may not

have functional alternatives for parking, up to 40% of lot frontage may be used for

Page 25 of 52



parking, provided that appropriate screening and visual enhancement is created

between the parking area and the sidewalk. Appropriate pedestrian connections

shall be constructed between such parking lots and sidewalks.

Findings: The proposed building is a residence on a lot of record these standards

are not applicable to this proposal.

(.05) Building compatibility.

A. The design and materials of proposed buildings shall reflect the architectural styles

of the Willamette Valley during the period from 1880 to 1930.

Findings: Our Colonial design incorporates Hadri Cedarmill 4” horizontal siding with rough
sawn wood window trim, double hung windows and paneled door would be typical of homes
built in the area in the time frame noted. The body will be painted Shermin Williams Kilim
Beige 6106 and the trim Latte 6108.

B. Commercial and manufacturing buildings shall be designed to reflect the types of

masonry or wood storefront buildings that were typical in the period from 1880 to

1930. Larger modern buildings shall be designed with facades that are divided to

give the appearance of a series of smaller buildings or distinctive store fronts,

and/or multi-storied structures with, at least, the appearance of second stories.

Findings: Not applicabi

C. Residential buildings shall be designed to reflect the size and shape of traditional

dwellings from the period from 1880 to 1930. Where larger multiple family

residential buildings are proposed, their building facades shall be divided into units

that give the appearance of a series of smaller dwellings.

Findings: The scale and design of our proposal would be extremely typical of homes construted in the
noted time period.

D. Manufactured housing units and mobile homes, if located outside of approved

manufactured or mobile home parks, shall meet the design standards applied to

other single family dwellings in the area.

Findings: Not applicable.

(.06) Building materials.

A. Facades shall be varied and articulated to provide visual interest to pedestrians.

Page 26 of 52



Within larger developments, variations in facades, floor levels, architectural

features, and/or exterior finishes shall be used to create the appearance of a series

of smaller buildings.

B. Exterior building materials shall be durable, and shall convey a visual impression of

durability. Materials such as masonry, stone, stucco, and wood will generally

provide such an appearance. Other materials that replicate the appearance of

those durable materials may also be used.

Findings:Raised masonary porch, large columns and wide window trim are incorporated to

give a sense of strength

C. Where masonry is to be used for exterior finish, varied patterns are to be

incorporated to break up the appearance of larger surfaces.

D. Wood siding is to be bevel, shingle siding or channel siding or the equivalent. T- 111

and similar sheathed siding shall not be used unless it is incorporated with batten

treatment to give the appearance of boards.

E. Exterior materials and colors are to match the architecture of the period.

(.07) Roof materials, roof design and parapets.

Pitched roof structures shall have a minimum pitch of 4:12.

Findings: our proposed roof is 5/12

B. Roofs with a pitch of less than 4:12 are permitted, provided that they have detailed,

stepped parapets or detailed masonry coursing.

C. Parapet corners are to be stepped. Parapets are to be designed to emphasize the

center entrance or primary entrance(s).

D. Sloped roofs that will be visible from the adjoining street right-of-way shall be of a

dark, non-ornamental color.

E. Preferred roofing materials that are visible from a public street include wood or

architectural grade composition shingle, tile, or metal with standing or batten

seams. Metal roofs without raised seams shall not be used in visible locations.

Findings: We are proposing architectural asphalt roofing to mimic shake roofing that would

have been used in the time period mentioned. The color will be Pabco Premier Oakwood.

Page 27 of 52



F. All roof and wall-mounted mechanical, electrical, communications, and service

equipment, including satellite dishes, wireless communication equipment, and vent

pipes are to be completely screened from public view by parapets, walls or other

approved means; or, alternatively, may be effectively camouflaged to match the

exterior of the building.

1. “Public view” is intended to mean the view from the sidewalk directly across the

street from the site.

2. Roof and wall-mounted mechanical, electrical, communications, and service

equipment, including satellite dishes, wireless communication equipment, and vent

pipes that are visible from lnterstate-5 shall be effectively camouflaged to match the

exterior of the building

We believe our proposal fully conforms to the code and spirit of the Old Town Overlay

Page 28 of 52



(
(

(

1~! ~
o
~

q
~

~
(..

.+

t~
r~

y
~

e
c
o

~
c
e

C
1’ —

S
~

~
t~

y
~

o
~

t

H

/

—
“-I

/

7
.7

I
S

N

S
W

~
ie

~

~3
t~

Q
\~

\~
I

1’

44
’

~
C

.~
±

e
r

~-
e(

~

(\)
D

~
C

~
.

~
o
~

\“
~

Page 29 of 52



a)
C,)
D
0
I

City of Wilsoriville
EXHIBIT B3.a DB15-0074

Page 30 of 52



(y
~ N

3

Page 31 of 52



]
I-

-
~
~

T~
7
t
~

~

Page 32 of 52



~/
~~

:1
~

1
~

7
7
T

1
J
’L

~
/J

?
7
7

-
~

I
/

~
7
/~

/
~i

’~
j2

-
~

~
-
~

~
T

~
fl

~
fl
~

7
~

~
?

—
‘“
4

‘~‘“
‘1’

Page 33 of 52



(
_

~
S

~
t~

y
c
e
\1

~
1
_
r

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
-
—

_
_
L
~

i
~

~
o~

1~

~

t-.
-

5
’

r
/

I
I

I
“
C

~
i~

~
~

e
c
(,

v
\

~
t

I

~
3
Z

~
2
~

-
-

-
~

-
-

-
-

—
—

—
—

—
-
—

~
ie

r
~

—

S
~

)
~

~

/
~

~

Page 34 of 52



C

/
~

_
~

)
t~

/

\
~

(/

y
~

H
-~~-i

/\
~

I,
~L

~
i

L~i
~

L
i

-1

I

I~

Page 35 of 52



,~
~

(~N
~

~

,\
.~

H

)

I

Page 36 of 52



Ill. SITE DESIGN HOUSE #2/COMPLIANCE

Requirement standards of RA-H zoning.

Section 4.138. Old Town (0) Overlay Zone.

(.01) Purpose. The purpose of this overlay zone is to establish the design standards that

will be applied to developments within the Old Town neighborhood, mapped as the

Boones Ferry District in the Citys West Side Master Plan. The following purpose

statement is not intended as a set of additional permit criteria. Rather, it is a description

of the desired outcome as development occurs incrementally, over time. This overlay

district is intended to create a modern interpretation of a traditional old town Main

Street and mixed use neighborhood. It is recognized that the Old Town neighborhood

is of unique significance because of its existing pattern of mixed uses, its access to the

Willamette River and because it was the original center of housing and commerce for

the community.

A. The standards of the “0” overlay zone are intended to assure that, through the

appropriate use of architectural details, windows, building orientation, facades, and

construction materials, new structures, and major alterations of existing structures,

create a pleasing and pedestrian-friendly environment.

B. It is the desire of the City to have buildings in the “0” overlay zone reflect a range of

architectural types and styles that were popular in the Willamette Valley from

approximately 1880 to 1930. The following design standards are intended to further

define those characteristics that will convey the desired architecture.

C. These standards are intended to encourage quality design, to enhance public

safety, and to provide a comfortable and attractive street environment by providing

features and amenities of value to pedestrians. Quality design will result in an

arrangement of buildings that are in visual harmony with one-another, leading to a

neighborhood that is vital, interesting, attractive, and safe. These qualities

Page 37 of 52



contribute to the health and vitality of the overall community.

D. These standards shall be used by the Cityts Planning Department and Development

Review Board in reviewing development applications within the Old Town

neighborhood.

Findings: The Craftsman architectural style implemented in the design and details of

the proposed structure reflect a style popular in the Willamette Valley in the time

II. SITE DESIGN HOUSE #1

Section 4.138. Old Town (0) Overlay Zone.

(.01) Purpose. The purpose of this overlay zone is to establish the design standards that

will be applied to developments within the Old Town neighborhood, mapped as the

Boones Ferry District in the Citys West Side Master Plan. The following purpose

statement is not intended as a set of additional permit criteria. Rather, it is a description

of the desired outcome as development occurs incrementally, over time. This overlay

district is intended to create a modern interpretation of a traditional old town Main

Street and mixed use neighborhood. It is recognized that the Old Town neighborhood

is of unique significance because of its existing pattern of mixed uses, its access to the

Willamette River and because it was the original center of housing and commerce for

the community.

A. The standards of the “0” overlay zone are intended to assure that, through the

appropriate use of architectural details, windows, building orientation, facades, and

construction materials, new structures, and major alterations of existing structures,

create a pleasing and pedestrian-friendly environment.

B. It is the desire of the City to have buildings in the “0” overlay zone reflect a range of

architectural types and styles that were popular in the Willamette Valley from

approximately 1880 to 1930. The following design standards are intended to further

define those characteristics that will convey the desired architecture.

C. These standards are intended to encourage quality design, to enhance public

safety, and to provide a comfortable and attractive street environment by providing

features and amenities of value to pedestrians. Quality design will result in an

Page 38 of 52



arrangement of buildings that are in visual harmony with one—another, leading to a

neighborhood that is vital, interesting, attractive, and safe. These qualities

contribute to the health and vitality of the overall community.

D. These standards shall be used by the City’s Planning Department and Development

Review Board in reviewing development applications within the Old Town

neighborhood.

Findings: The Craftsman architectural style implemented in the design and details of

the proposed structure reflect a style popular in the Willarnette Valley in the time

range referred to.

(.02) The “0” Overlay zone shall be applied in conjunction with the underlying base zones

in the Old Town neighborhood.

A. The following shall require site design review for conformance with these standards:

1. New building construction and the substantial redevelopment of existing

buildings, including the construction of new single family dwellings; and

2. Any exterior remodeling that requires a building permit, when that remodeling is

visible from a public street (other than an alley).

Response: The current zone is RA-H. A single-family home with attached ADU is a permitted use of RA-H

zone. This lot of record’s lot size is 5,000 SF. Minimum required lot size is 30,000

SF so this lot of record qualifies as a legal, non-conforming RA-H lot with setbacks

per Section 4.120(.04)B.1.

B. Except, however, that exterior remodeling of residential units other than those facing

Boones Ferry Road shall be reviewed through the Class I Administrative Review

procedures of Sections 4.009 through 4.012. This review will be applied only to the

portions of buildings that are visible from public streets (not including alleys) and is

intended to assure that the design of the portion of the building being remodeled

will either match the standards of the Old Town Overlay Zone or be consistent with

the existing design of the structure.

Findings: This proposal is for a new construction, so this section does not apply.

Page 39 of 52



C. Those proposing to build or remodel the exterior of any building in the area are

encouraged to contact the City about the availability of funds for historic façade

treatment.

Findings: The Applicant has contacted the city in regards to this issue

(.03) Development standards.

A. Lot area, width, depth - As specified in the underlying base zone. Single family and

two-family dwelling units, other than those on lots fronting Boones Ferry Road, shall

be subject to the following minimum setbacks:

1. Front and rear yard: 15 feet;

2. Street side of corner lots: 10 feet;

3. Other side yards: 5 feeet

Findings: Since the proposed lot fronts Boones Ferry Road, this is not applicable.

B. Building Setbacks - Buildings fronting Boones Ferry Road shall abut the public

sidewalk except where public plazas, courtyards, approved landscaping, or other

public pedestrian amenities are approved. Except, however, that residential

garages or carports shall be set back a minimum of twenty (20) feet from any

sidewalk or traveled portion of a street across which access to the garage or

carport is taken. The Development Review Board may approve other setbacks to

accommodate sidewalks, landscaping, or other streetscape features located

between the street right-of-way and the building.

Findings: Garage has 25’ setback

C. Landscaping - Not less than fifteen (15) percent of the development site shall be

landscaped. In the event that a building is set back from a street side property line,

along Boones Ferry Road, Bailey Street, or 5th Street, the intervening area shall be

landscaped. In reviewing proposals for parking lots in locations between buildings

and streets, the Development Review Board may require special landscaping

treatments or designs to screen the view of the parking lot from the public right-ofway.

D. Building height - As specified in the underlying base zone.

Page 40 of 52



Findings: RA-H allows 35 MAX building height, we are proposing 25~-6” building height per
attached drawings. Applicant will landscape the front yard.

E. Street access to Boones Ferry Road. Ingress and egress points along Boones Ferry

Road shall be designed and constructed such that access points on one side of the

road shall coordinate with access points on the other side of the road. New

developments along Boones Ferry Road and north of Bailey Street will have access

points designed and constructed in a pattern that replicates the shape of Main

Street blocks.

Findings: The access point will be a driveway similar to the neighborhood

(.04) Pedestrian environment. In order to enhance the pedestrian scale of the

neighborhood:

A Special attention shall be given to the primary building entrances, assuring that they

are both attractive and functional.

Findings: We propose a prominent raised front porch with 12x12 tapered colums and wood

railings. The front door will be a raised paneled door typical of the targeted time period.

B. The pedestrian environment shall be enhanced by amenities such as street

furniture, landscaping, awnings, and movable planters with flowers, as required by

the Development Review Board.

C. Sidewalk width may vary from block to block, depending upon the nature of adjacent

land uses and the setbacks of existing buildings. Provided, however, that a

continuity of streetscape design is maintained along Boones Ferry Road, generally

following the pattern that has been started with the 1996 approval for Old Town

Village on the west side of Boones Ferry Road from Fourth Street to Fifth Street.

[Amended by Ordinance No. 538, 2/21/02.]

1. North of Bailey Street, where the most intense commercial development is

anticipated, the widest sidewalks and most mature landscaping are required.

2. In situations where existing buildings are located at the right-of-way line, special

sidewalk designs may be necessary to assure pedestrian access.

Findings: not applicable.

Page 41 of 52



D. When practicable, buildings along Boones Ferry Road shall occupy 100% of the

street frontage between block segments. Up to 25% of street frontage may be in

public plazas, courtyards, and similar landscape or streetscape features that

provide public spaces adjacent to the sidewalk. For smaller lots, which may not

have functional alternatives for parking, up to 40% of lot frontage may be used for

parking, provided that appropriate screening and visual enhancement is created

between the parking area and the sidewalk. Appropriate pedestrian connections

shall be constructed between such parking lots and sidewalks.

Findings: The proposed building is a residence on a lot of record these standards

are not applicable to this proposal.

(.05) Building compatibility.

A, The design and materials of proposed buildings shall reflect the architectural styles

of the Willamette Valley during the period from 1880 to 1930.

Findings: Our Craftsman design incorporates Hardi Cedarmill 8” horizontal siding with wide
rough sawn wood window trim, double hung windows and paneled door would be typical of
homes built in the area in the time frame noted. The body of the house with be painted
Sherwin Williams Crème 7556 and the trim Pure White 7005.

B. Commercial and manufacturing buildings shall be designed to reflect the types of

masonry or wood storefront buildings that were typical in the period from 1880 to

1930. Larger modern buildings shall be designed with facades that are divided to

give the appearance of a series of smaller buildings or distinctive store fronts,

and/or multi-storied structures with, at least, the appearance of second stories.

Findings: Not applicabl

C. Residential buildings shall be designed to reflect the size and shape of traditional

dwellings from the period from 1880 to 1930. Where larger multiple family

residential buildings are proposed, their building facades shall be divided into units

that give the appearance of a series of smaller dwellings.

Findings: The scale and design of our proposal would be extremely typical of homes construted in the
noted time period.

D. Manufactured housing units and mobile homes, if located outside of approved

Page 42 of 52



manufactured or mobile home parks, shall meet the design standards applied to

other single family dwellings in the area.

Findings: Not applicable.

(.06) Building materials.

A. Facades shall be varied and articulated to provide visual interest to pedestrians.

Within larger developments, variations in facades, floor levels, architectural

features, and/or exterior finishes shall be used to create the appearance of a series

of smaller buildings.

B. Exterior building materials shall be durable, and shall convey a visual impression of

durability. Materials such as masonry, stone, stucco, and wood will generally

provide such an appearance. Other materials that replicate the appearance of

those durable materials may also be used.

Findings: A raised masonry porch, large tapered columns and wide window trim are
incorporated to give a sense of strength

C. Where masonry is to be used for exterior finish, varied patterns are to be

incorporated to break up the appearance of larger surfaces.

D. Wood siding is to be bevel, shingle siding or channel siding or the equivalent. T- 111

and similar sheathed siding shall not be used unless it is incorporated with batten

treatment to give the appearance of boards.

E. Exterior materials and colors are to match the architecture of the period.

(.07) Roof materials, roof design and parapets.

Pitched roof structures shall have a minimum pitch of 4:12.

Findings: our proposed roof is 7/12

B. Roofs with a pitch of less than 4:12 are permitted, provided that they have detailed,

stepped parapets or detailed masonry coursing.

C. Parapet corners are to be stepped. Parapets are to be designed to emphasize the

center entrance or primary entrance(s).

D. Sloped roofs that will be visible from the adjoining street right-of-way shall be of a

dark, non-ornamental color.

Page 43 of 52



E. Preferred roofing materials that are visible from a public street include wood or

architectural grade composition shingle, tile, or metal with standing or batten

seams. Metal roofs without raised seams shall not be used in visible locations.

Findings: The roofing will be asphalt Architectural to mimic a shake material that would have

been common in the noted time frame. The color will be Pabco Premier Weather Wood.

F. All roof and wall-mounted mechanical, electrical, communications, and service

equipment, including satellite dishes, wireless communication equipment, and vent

pipes are to be completely screened from public view by parapets, walls or other

approved means; or, alternatively, may be effectively camouflaged to match the

exterior of the building.

1. “Public view” is intended to mean the view from the sidewalk directly across the

street from the site.

2. Roof and wall-mounted mechanical, electrical, communications, and service

equipment, including satellite dishes, wireless communication equipment, and vent

pipes that are visible from lnterstate-5 shall be effectively camouflaged to match the

exterior of the building

We believe our proposal fully conforms to the code and spirit of the Old Town Overlay

Page 44 of 52



(
(

(

A!
V~

it
~

S
~

t~
iy
~

f~
/if

L
~

ti ~
o
~

C
i~

y
i~

)

-~i~
‘1

/

5

2.

-
—

[7
/

51

~
e
cc

,~
c

C’

-
-

(I~
3
(~

~
C

fl’~

S
W

:
~

2
(‘~‘

c
y
I

f\l
~

(~
,r
~

‘~
o

~
‘\
‘h

c
~

~
\

‘
~

Page 45 of 52



m x x W
C

•)

w
o —

-~ 01
H

ou
se

#2

Page 46 of 52



*
~

*
*

Page 47 of 52



- r

--St

Page 48 of 52



/~

____

Page 49 of 52



1~

/

L
-~

Page 50 of 52



(

ii

~
L~L~c~.L

~

J
1~

[*
H

~

Li

Page 51 of 52



2~7’

Page 52 of 52



 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2015 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VII. Public Hearing:   
B. Resolution No. 317.  Charbonneau Boat Dock Access:  

Charbonneau Country Club - Applicant.   The 
applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit within the Willamette River Greenway Boundary, 
Type ‘C’ Tree Removal Plan and an abbreviated 
Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) Impact Report 
(SRIR) for Charbonneau Country Club, for replacement 
and relocation of an access gangway to the Charbonneau 
boat marina. the site is located on the northwest corner of 
Tax Lot 318, and also affecting Tax Lot 308, and ODOT 
R.O.W, in Section 25, Township 3 South, Range 1 West, 
Willamette Meridian, City Of Wilsonville, Clackamas 
County, Oregon. Staff:  Blaise Edmonds 

 
Case Files:  DB15-0059 – Greenway Conditional Use 
   DB15-0060 – Type C Tree Plan 
   SI15-0001   – Abbreviated Significant Resource Impact        
                                            Report (SRIR) and map verification within  
                                            the Significant Resource Overlay Zone  
                                            (SROZ)   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 Resolution No. 317 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 317 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS APPROVING A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT WITHIN THE WILLAMETTE RIVER GREENWAY 
BOUNDARY, TYPE ‘C’ TREE REMOVAL PLAN AND AN ABBREVIATED 
SIGNIFICANT RESOURCE OVERLAY ZONE (SROZ) IMPACT REPORT (SRIR) FOR 
CHARBONNEAU COUNTRY CLUB, FOR REPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION OF 
AN ACCESS GANGWAY TO THE CHARBONNEAU BOAT MARINA. THE SITE IS 
LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF TAX LOT 318, AND ALSO 
AFFECTING TAX LOT 308, AND ODOT R.O.W, IN SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 3 
SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST, WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, CITY OF WILSONVILLE, 
CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON. CHARBONNEAU COUNTRY CLUB - 
APPLICANT. 
 
 WHEREAS, an application, together with planning exhibits for the above-captioned 
development, has been submitted in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.008 of 
the Wilsonville Code, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Staff has prepared staff report on the above-captioned subject 
dated November 16, 2015, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning exhibits and staff report were duly considered by the 
Development Review Board at a scheduled meeting conducted on November 23, 2015, at which 
time exhibits, together with findings and public testimony were entered into the public record, 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board considered the subject and the 
recommendations contained in the staff report, and 
 
 WHEREAS, interested parties, if any, have had an opportunity to be heard on the subject. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board Panel B 
of the City of Wilsonville does hereby adopt the staff report dated November 23, 2015, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A1, with findings and recommendations contained therein, and authorizes the 
Planning Director to issue permits consistent with said recommendations for: 
 

DB15-0059 Greenway Conditional Use Permit Flood Plain P and Permit and new 
landscaping. 
DB15-0060 Type ‘C’ Tree Plan   
SI15-0001 Abbreviated SRIR report. 

  
ADOPTED by the Development Review Board of the City of Wilsonville at a regular 

meeting thereof this 23rd day of November, 2015 and filed with the Planning Administrative 
Assistant on _______________.  This resolution is final on the l5th calendar day after the 
postmarked date of the written notice of decision per WC Sec 4.022(.09) unless appealed per WC 
Sec 4.022(.02) or called up for review by the council in accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.03). 
 
       
          ______,  
      Aaron Woods, Chair, Panel B 
      Wilsonville Development Review Board 



Page 2 of 2 
 Resolution No. 317 

Attest: 
 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 1 
 

 
EXHIBIT A1  

 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘B’ 
 QUASI -JUDICIAL STAFF REPORT 

CHARBONNEAU VILLAGE COUNTRY CLUB 
MARINA ACCESS 

RELOCATION/REPLACEMENT  
 
 

Public Hearing Date:  November 23, 2005 
Date of Report: November 16, 2015 

 
 

Application Numbers:  Request A: DB15-0059 Greenway Conditional Use Permit 
Flood Plain P and Permit and new landscaping. 
Request B: DB15-0060 Type ‘C’ Tree Plan   
Request C: SI15-0001 Abbreviated SRIR and map 
verification within the SROZ  
 

Property Owners: Illahee Drive Fee Owner LLC, the City of Wilsonville and Oregon 
Department of Transportation. 

Applicant: Charbonneau Village Country Club 

Request: Mr. Ben Altman of Pioneer Design Group, Inc., acting as agent for the applicant, 
Charbonneau Village Country Club proposes a boat marina access project described below: 

Proposed Improvements Provided by the Applicant: 
“The applicant is proposing to replace and relocate the access ramp or gangway to the marina. 
The current access is from the west, via a paved pathway, over ODOT property, to a gangway 
that leads to an elevated platform at the shoreline. From this platform there is a locked gate and 
another ramp down to the dock.” 

“Because of a bank failure, this access alignment is to be abandoned and relocated to the east, 
directly from the marina parking lot.” 

“At the northeast corner of the marina parking, the following improvements are proposed as a 
replacement for the existing pathway access: 

 

• A 4 foot wide welded aluminum gangway (12 feet in length); 

• A welded aluminum platform (5’x 5’ x 3.5’), mounted on f foot footing piers. This 
platform will be at the top of bank, with two of the pier footings just over the bank; and 

• A 56 inch wide welded aluminum gangway (80 feet in length). The gangway will 
actually be stairs, as the grade will be about 28%. It will be anchored at the top of bank to 

Page 1 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 2 
 

the elevated landing platform. The elevated platform at the top of bank, allows the ramp 
to extend to about the middle of the existing elevated landing at the shoreline, while 
maintaining a 1 foot vertical clearance above the slope of the bank.” 

“The intent is to leave the existing east/west gangway from the existing pathway (ODOT) to the 
shoreline platform in-place. The applicant’s Design Team has concluded that removal would 
have greater environmental impacts than leaving it as is. Barriers will be installed to maximize 
safety and control access to the gangway.” 

“Overall, this design minimizes ground and vegetation impacts, with only two trees (staff note: 
four trees) required to be removed. Except for the 4 pier footings and two trees, the installation 
of the ramping will not result in any alternations to the bank surface or vegetation. The ramp will 
span above the ground level (1’ minimum vertical clearance) down the bank to the elevated 
shoreline landing platform.” 

“The two sections of gangway will be constructed of welded aluminum, with open grate decking, 
and use truss-style railings. This design allows for rain drainage and light penetration.”  

 
Comprehensive Plan Designation: Residential and Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) 
 
Current Zone Map Designation: Planned Development Residential – 3 (PDR-3) and 
Willamette River Greenway 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the application, together with recommended 
conditions. 

Project Location: The property lies along northwesterly bank of the Willamette River at 
Charbonneau next to Interstate – 5. The subject property is more particularly described as being 
Tax Lots 308, 318 and I-5 ROW in Section 25; T3S R1W; Clackamas County, Oregon. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 3 
 

VINCINITY MAP 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 4 
 

The following was provided by the applicant:  

 
 
 

Page 4 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 5 
 

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA: 
 

Zoning Review Criteria:  

Sections 4.008 - 4.035 Application Procedure 
Section 4.124.4 (as applicable) Planned Development Residential (PDR-3) 

Zone 
Section 4.139.00 – 4.139.10 Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) 
Section 4.500 –  4.514 Willamette River Greenway 
Section 4.155 Parking 
Section 4.172 Flood Plain Regulations 
Section 4.176  
Section 4.184 Conditional Uses 
Subsection 4.140(.07)(A)(1) Owner’s Authorization of Affected Property for 

Development 
Sections 4.600 - 4.620(.20) Tree Preservation and Protection 

Other Planning Documents:  

The Village at Wilsonville 
Master Plan 

 

 
Staff Reviewers: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning and Kerry Rappold, Natural 
Resources Program Manager. 
 

Page 5 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 6 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

The detailed project is provided by the applicant, found in Exhibit B1. This narrative adequately 
describes the project, the requested application components, and proposed findings regarding 
applicable review criteria. Except where necessary to examine issues identified in this report, 
staff has relied upon the applicant’s submittal documents, rather than repeat their contents again 
here. The application components are described briefly, below. 

Request A – Willamette River Greenway Conditional Use Permit 

The proposed pedestrian gangway or ramp to the marina for private use and the proposed bank 
restoration is located within the Willamette River Greenway, which requires approval of a 
Willamette River Greenway conditional use permit. The location and scope of those 
improvements is appropriate, and result in little physical impact to the Willamette River 
resource, while a visual opportunity and recreational benefit will be achieved.   
 

Request B – Type ‘C’ Tree Plan 

Four (4) regulated trees will need to be removed for its construction and fourteen (14) trees will 
be replanted. The location and scope of the improvement is appropriate, and result in little 
physical impact to the Willamette River resource, while a visual opportunity and recreational 
benefit will be achieved.   

Request C – Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) Abbreviated Significant Resource 
Impact Report and Map (SRIR) Review.  

Based upon the detail provided by the applicant, and the level of review it enables, the 
applicant’s proposal may be approved as submitted, subject to compliance with proposed 
conditions of approval.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 7 
 

PROPOSED CONCLUSION AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
Based on the Findings of Fact and information included in this Staff Report, and information 
received from a duly advertised public hearing, Staff recommends that the Development Review 
Board approve the proposed application.  
 
The applications and supporting documents are hereby adopted for approval with the 
following conditions:  
 
PD = Planning Division conditions 
NR = Natural Resources Conditions 

 

 
Request A: DB15-0059:  Willamette River Greenway Conditional Use Permit 

Planning Division Conditions: 

PD1.   This action approves a conditional use for the project proposed within the Willamette 
River Greenway, as entered into the record on November 23, 2015. The 
Applicant/Owner shall develop the project in substantial compliance with the Site 
Design Review Plans approved by the Development Review Board (DRB), unless 
altered with DRB approval, or minor revisions are approved by the Planning Director 
under a Class I administrative review process. 

PD2.    Any areas that have soil disturbed, or vegetation removed, in the Significant Resource 
Overlay Zone shall be restored and replanted with native plants as approved by the 
Natural Resources Program Manager. 

PD3.   Upon completion of the project, the Applicant/Owner shall arrange for a final inspection 
to be conducted by the Natural Resources Program Manager. 

 

PD4.    All landscaping required and approved by the Board shall be installed prior to issuance 
of occupancy permits, unless security equal to one hundred and ten percent (110%) of 
the cost of the landscaping as determined by the Planning Director is filed with the City 
assuring such installation within six (6) months of occupancy. "Security" is cash, 
certified check, time certificates of deposit, assignment of a savings account or such 
other assurance of completion as shall meet with the approval of the City Attorney.  In 
such cases the developer shall also provide written authorization, to the satisfaction of 
the City Attorney, for the City or its designees to enter the property and complete the 
landscaping as approved. If the installation of the landscaping is not completed within 
the six-month period, or within an extension of time authorized by the Board, the 
security may be used by the City to complete the installation.  Upon completion of the 
installation, any portion of the remaining security deposited with the City will be 
returned to the applicant. 

PD5.    All landscaping shall be continually maintained, including necessary watering, weeding, 
pruning, and replacing, in a substantially similar manner as originally approved by the 
Board, unless altered as allowed by Wilsonville’s Development Code. 

Page 7 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 8 
 

PD6.   The following requirements for planting of shrubs and ground cover shall be met:   
• All shrubs shall be well branched and typical of their type as described in current 

AAN Standards and shall be equal to or better than 2-gallon containers and 10” to 
12” spread. The proposed Oregon grape and snowberry shrubs shall be increased 
from 1 gallon to 2 gallon size. See Finding A18. 

• Shrubs shall reach their designed size for screening within three (3) years of 
planting. 

• Ground cover shall be equal to or better than the following depending on the type 
of plant materials used:  gallon containers  spaced at 4 feet on center minimum, 4" 
pot spaced 2 feet on center minimum, 2-1/4" pots spaced at 18 inch on center 
minimum. 

• No bare root planting shall be permitted. 
• Ground cover shall be sufficient to cover at least 80% of the bare soil in required 

landscape areas within three (3) years of planting.   
• Appropriate native plant materials shall be installed beneath the canopies of trees 

and large shrubs to avoid the appearance of bare ground in those locations. 
PD7.     Plant materials shall be installed to current industry standards and be properly staked to 

ensure survival. Plants that die shall be replaced in kind, within one growing season, 
unless appropriate substitute species are approved by the City. 

PD8.  The Applicant/Owner shall obtain a flood plain permit from the City before construction 
or development within any area of 100-year flood hazard.  

 
Request B: DB15-0060: Type ‘C’ Tree Plan  
PD4.  This approval for removal applies only four (4) trees identified in the Applicant’s 

submitted materials. All other trees on the property shall be maintained unless removal 
is approved through separate application.  

PD5.   The fourteen (14) replacement trees shall be state Department of Agriculture Nursery 
Grade No. 1 or better. The permit grantee or the grantee’s successors-in-interest shall 
cause the replacement tree to be staked, fertilized and mulched, and shall guarantee the 
tree for two (2) years after the planting date. A “guaranteed” tree that dies or becomes 
diseased during the two (2) years after planting shall be replaced. 

PD6.   All trees to be planted shall consist of nursery stock that meets requirements of the 
American Association of Nurserymen (AAN) American Standards for Nursery Stock 
(ANSI Z60.1) for top grade.  

 

 
RE: Conditional Use Permit (DB15-0059 and SI15-0001, Charbonneau Marina Access) 
 
This memorandum includes staff conditions of approval. The conditions are based on the 
Conditional Use Permit and the SRIR review. The conditions of approval apply to the applicant’s 
submittal of construction plans (i.e., engineering drawings). 
 
Request C: SI015-0001:  Abbreviated SRIR within SROZ  

Natural Resources Conditions: 
Significant Resource Overlay Zone Map Refinement: 

Page 8 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 9 
 

Significant Resource Overlay Zone  

NR1. Prior to any site grading or ground disturbance, the applicant is required to delineate the 
boundary of the SROZ.  Six-foot (6’) tall cyclone fences with metal posts pounded into 
the ground at 6’-8’ centers shall be used to protect the significant natural resource area 
where development encroaches into the 25-foot Impact Area. 

NR2. All landscaping, including herbicides used to eradicate invasive plant species and 
existing vegetation, in the SROZ shall be reviewed and approved by the Natural 
Resources Program Manager. Native plants are required for landscaping in the SROZ. 

NR3.   Pursuant to Section 4.139.03 (.05) of the Wilsonville Code, the applicant is required to 
use habitat-friendly development practices (Table NR-2) to the extent practicable for 
any encroachment into the Significant Resource Overlay Zone and the 25-foot Impact 
Area.  

NR4.   Mitigation actions shall be implemented prior to or at the same time as the impact 
activity is conducted. 

NR5. The applicant shall submit a monitoring and maintenance plan to be conducted for a 
period of five years following mitigation implementation. The applicant shall be 
responsible for ongoing maintenance and management activities, and shall submit an 
annual report to the Natural Resources Program Manager documenting such activities, 
and reporting progress towards the mitigation goals. The report shall contain, at a 
minimum, photographs from established photo points, quantitative measure of success 
criteria, including plant survival and vigor if these are appropriate data. The Year 1 
annual report shall be submitted one year following mitigation action implementation. 
The final annual report (Year 5 report) shall document successful satisfaction of 
mitigation goals, as per the stated performance standards. If the ownership of the 
mitigation site property changes ownership, the new owners will have the continued 
responsibilities established by this section. 

NR6. The Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) and mitigation area depicted on the 
SRIR mapping for the site shall be identified in a conservation easement. The applicant 
shall record the conservation easement with Clackamas Court Clerk’s office. The 
conservation easement shall include language prohibiting any disturbance of natural 
vegetation without first obtaining approval from the City Planning Division and the 
Natural Resources Program Manager. The conservation easement shall be reviewed by 
the City Attorney prior to recording. 

Other  

NR7. The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 
proposed construction activities and proposed facilities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN 
permit). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 10 
 

EXHIBITS LIST 

The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the 
Development Review Board in consideration of the applications as submitted: 
A1.    Staff Report, findings, recommendations and conditions. 

 A2.    Staff PowerPoint presentation. 
 
Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 
B1. Charbonneau Village Marina Access Relocation/Replacement Application, date received 
October 15, 2015 including application, compliance report, SRIR/SROZ Map, arborist report, 
site photos, tax Map & easements & Ownership and preliminary plans.  
 
B2. Full size and 11” x 17” size Drawings/Plan Sheets of the reduced plan sheets on file and 
also provided in the DRB packets: 
 
Plan Set, Sheet Number 
1/7       Ownership Affected by Dock Access – Existing & Proposed 
2/7      Existing Conditions 
3/7      SROZ/Green Way Zoning 
4/7      Site Sections 
5/7      Proposed Site Plan 
6/7      Ramp Detail 
7/7      Aerial Plan 
1/1      SRIR Impact & Mitigation Areas 
Planting Conceptual Plan  
 
Development Review Team 
C1.  Natural Resources Program Manager Conditions, dated November 12, 2015 
 
Public Testimony 
Letters (neither for nor Against): None submitted 
Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
Letters (Opposed): None submitted 

  

Page 10 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 11 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. Existing Site Conditions:   

The applicant has provided a site description found in the project narrative in Exhibit B1 
is described below:  

 
2. The applicant’s Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) delineates specific resource 

boundaries and provided a justification for the proposed project within the SROZ. The 
applicant’s SRIR contained all the required information, including a physical analysis, 
ecological analysis, and development recommendations. 

3. The applicant has complied with Sections 4.013-4.031 of the Wilsonville Code, said 
sections pertaining to review procedures and submittal requirements. The required public 
notices have been sent and all proper notification procedures have been satisfied. 

Page 11 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 12 
 

4. Notice of the proposed project has been sent to the appropriate agencies involved in the 
review of public improvements. Comments and conditions of approval from the Building 
and Engineering Divisions, and Natural Resources Program Manager were received and 
are incorporated into this staff report. 

5. The statutory 120-day time limit applies to this application. The application was 
originally received on August 31, 2015.  Staff conducted a completeness review within 
the statutorily allowed 30-day review period, and advised the applicant on September 30, 
2015, of missing items. On October 15, 2015, the applicant submitted additional 
materials intended to complete the application. On October 26, 2015, the application was 
deemed complete. The City must render a final decision for the request, including any 
appeals, by February 23, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 13 
 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 
 
REQUEST A, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
 
Section 4.508(.01)(A) - (B) – Conditional Use Permit 
 
A1.  The applicant is proposing a pedestrian ramp form an existing parking lot leading to the 

Charbonneau marina which encroaches into the Willamette River Greenway. As a result, 
these improvements require approval of a conditional use permit. 

 
Section 4.031. Authority of the Development Review Board. 

D. Conditional Use Permits, as authorized in Section 4.184. 
 

A2. The applicant has submitted this request to the Development Review Board, which is the 
proper review authority for a Willamette River Greenway Conditional Use Permit. This 
criterion is met. 

 
Section 4.124.3. Planned Development Residential - 3  (PDR-3) Zone. 
 
A3. The subject property is located in the PDR- 3 Zone. Private recreation facilities are 

conditional uses as defined by the Willamette River Greenway section of the code (WC 
4.500). Such recreational facilities are not listed as an outright permitted or accessory use, 
but are conditional uses.  This criterion is satisfied.    

 
Section 4.184. Conditional Use Permits – Authorization. 
 
(.01) Conditional Use of property may be granted by the Development Review Board after concluding 
a public hearing as provided in Section 4.013.  A land use that is “conditional” is one that is generally 
not compatible with surrounding uses unless mitigating conditions of approval are established.  In acting 
on applications for Conditional Use Permits, the DRB may establish conditions of approval that are 
found to be necessary to implement the Comprehensive Plan or to assure compliance with the standards 
of this Code, based on information in the record. 

A. Authorization to Grant or Deny Conditional Uses: A conditional use listed in this 
ordinance shall be permitted, altered, or denied in accordance with the standards and procedures of this 
Section.  In judging whether a conditional use permit shall be approved, or determining appropriate 
conditions of approval, the Development Review Board shall weigh the proposal’s positive and negative 
features that would result from authorizing the particular development at a location proposed, and to 
approve such use, shall find that the following criteria are either met, can be met by observance of 
conditions, or are not applicable: 

 
1. The proposal will be consistent with the provisions of the Comprehensive 

Plan and the requirements of Chapter 4 of the Wilsonville Code and other applicable 
policies of the City. 

 
2. The characteristics of the site are suitable for the proposed use 

considering size, shape, design, location, topography, existence of improvements and 
natural features. 

 

Page 13 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 14 
 

3. All required public facilities and services exist, or will be provided, to 
adequately meet the needs of the proposed development. 

 
4. The proposed use will not alter the character of the surrounding area in 

a manner which substantially limits, or precludes the use of surrounding properties for 
the uses listed as permitted in the zone. 

 
A4. The applicant’s request would result in an insignificant impact to the Willamette River 

Greenway and the SROZ because the proposed ramp will span over the resource area 
supported by landings at either end. Four (4) trees are proposed to be removed, and only a 
minimal impact to remaining trees will result from the proposal. The remaining 
vegetative fringe of the Willamette River will be enhanced by the applicant’s proposal.   
 

A5. The applicant’s proposal is consistent with the provisions of the Comprehensive Plan for 
protecting natural resources. The characteristics of the site are suitable for a ramp to an 
existing marina. The proposed improvements are the minimum necessary to serve the 
proposed project.   
 

A6. There are no public facilities required to serve the proposed project.   
 

A8. The proposed use will not substantially alter the character of the existing bank and 
surrounding area, and will not limit or preclude the use of surrounding property. Staff 
finds that the approval criteria for granting a conditional use permit are met. 

 
WILLAMETTE RIVER GREENWAY 

 
Section 4.500. General Purpose. 

 
The general purposes of this Section are to protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the natural, scenic, 
historical, agricultural, economic and recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette River as the 
Willamette River Greenway. 
 
A9. The applicant’s proposal will have a minimal impact on the Willamette River Greenway, 

as four (4) trees are proposed to be removed and only a 45 step, 56’ – 10” long ramp will 
span the SROZ area. See Plan Sheet 6 of 7. The applicant’s request supports the purpose 
section of the Greenway by improving the economic and recreational qualities of this 
property along the Willamette River. The proposal would result in an enhancement in 
pedestrian use of the natural and scenic qualities of the river. A1.This criterion is 
satisfied. 
 

Section 4.504. General - Greenway Boundaries. 
 
The Willamette River Greenway Boundaries in the City shall be the same as the Oregon State 
Parks and Recreation Department Willamette River Greenway Boundaries, and shall be defined 
on the City of Wilsonville Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Maps.  The boundary is generally 150 
feet from the ordinary low water line unless otherwise defined by the Map and this Section.  
Given that the Greenway Boundary does not always parallel the banks of the River, contact 
should be made with the City’s Planning Department to verify boundary locations. 

Page 14 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 15 
 

 
A10. The applicant’s proposal is within the Willamette River Greenway Boundary as defined 

by the City of Wilsonville zoning map.  This criterion is satisfied. 
 
Section 4.506. General - Uses Permitted Outright. 

(.01) The following are outright permitted uses within the Willamette River Greenway 
Boundary: 

A. The placing, by a public agency, of signs, markers, aids, etc. to serve the public. 

B. Activities to protect, conserve, enhance and maintain public recreational, scenic, 
historical, and natural uses on public and private lands, except that changes of use, 
intensification of use or development shall require Conditional Use Permit review as 
provided by this Code. 

C. Agriculture as defined in ORS 215.203(2). 

D. Reasonable emergency procedures necessary for the safety or protection of property. 

E. Maintenance and repair usual and necessary for the continuance of an existing use 
not defined as intensification of use or change of use. 

F. Uses legally existing on December 6, 1975. 

 
A11. The proposed activity is related to an existing boat dock marina and is not identified as a 

use permitted outright. Therefore, a Willamette River Greenway Conditional Use Permit 
is required.  This criterion is met. 

 
Section 4.508. Conditional Use Permit - Uses Permitted Conditionally.  

(.01) The following uses may be allowed within the Willamette River Greenway Boundaries 
subject to a Conditional Use Permit by the Development Review Board: 

A. All uses permitted in the underlying zone which are not listed as permitted uses in 
Section 4.506. 

B. All uses which are classified as intensification of use, change of use or development, 
other than tree removal, which shall be governed by the provisions of Section 4.600. 

 
A12. The applicant’s proposal for a ramp to an existing boat dock marina is considered an 

intensification of use. This is due to the provision of pedestrian access to an existing 
private boat dock marina. This portion of Greenway will be used more frequently as a 
result of the improvement of the proposed ramp. This criterion is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.510. Conditional Use Permit - Findings In Support of Granting.  

(.01) A Greenway Conditional Use Permit may be granted by the Development Review Board upon 
making the findings required in Section 4.184 (Conditional Use Permits) and the following 
additional findings: 

A. That to the greatest extent possible, the maximum possible landscape area, open space or 
vegetation between the activity and the river are provided, 

Page 15 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 16 
 

B. That to the greatest extent possible, necessary public access in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan will be provided to and along the River by appropriate legal means. 

C. That the change of use, intensification of use, or development complies with this Code, all other 
applicable City Ordinances, the Comprehensive Plan, and the Oregon State Parks and 
Recreation Department Greenway Plan. 

 
A13. The proposed gangway or ramp will augment access to an existing boat marina. The 

previous pathway and ramp was washed out by a flood event. This proposal places the 
ramp entrance at an existing parking lot away from the river at a location that minimizes 
any impacts to the slope, reduces the likelihood of erosion, and requires minimal impact 
to trees in the Greenway.  Due to the private nature of the property, public access will not 
be provided and is not required. The applicant’s proposal satisfies the WC, and is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan regarding protection of natural resources. The 
proposal is consistent with the State Greenway Plan by restoring vegetation along the 
bank of the river, and increasing the recreational opportunities for the owners of the 
property. The Oregon State Parks and Recreation Department has been notified of this 
proposal and Staff has not received any comments. The above criteria, which are required 
to be satisfied for the granting of a Willamette River Greenway CUP are met. 

 
Section 4.512. Conditional Use Permit - Application Procedures. 

(.01) All Conditional Use Permits shall be applied for and reviewed by the Development 
Review Board in accordance with Section 4.184. 

 
A14. The DRB will be conducting a public hearing on this matter consistent with the powers 

granted to this body by the WC, and the application will be reviewed using the 
Conditional Use criteria consistent with this section. These criteria are met. 

 
Section 4.514. Conditional Use Permit - Use Management Standards. 
 

(.01) The natural scenic views, historical character and recreational qualities of the 
Willamette River shall be protected by preservation and enhancement of the vegetative 
fringe along the river bank. 

(.02) A plan to remove any tree or trees shall be reviewed by the Development Review Board 
under the procedures of Section 4.600, et seq.  Based on the standards and procedures of 
Section 4.620.10, mandatory mitigation shall be required as a condition of approval for 
any conditional use permit granted under this Section. 

(.03) Developments shall be directed away from the river to the greatest possible degree; 
provided, however, lands committed to urban uses within the Greenway shall be 
permitted to continue as urban uses, including port, industrial, commercial and 
residential uses, uses pertaining to navigational requirements, water and land access 
needs and related facilities. 

(.04)  All development after the effective date of this ordinance, except water dependent and 
water related uses, shall be set back a minimum of 75 feet upland from the top of each 
bank. 

Page 16 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 17 
 

(.05) Fish, riparian and wildlife corridors leading into the river channel shall remain open. 

(.06) All development, change of use or intensification of use shall demonstrate, to the 
maximum extent possible, maintenance of public safety and protection of public and 
private property, especially from vandalism and trespass.   

 
A15. The applicant’s proposal will replace a damaged pathway into landscaping of the 

Willamette River.  See the Planting Conceptual Plan in Exhibit B1. Only four (4) trees 
are proposed to be removed in order to install the proposed ramp. The location of the 
proposed ramp is directed away from the river to the greatest extent possible. The 
proposed ramp to the existing marina is water-dependent. There will be no impact to 
wildlife corridors leading into the river channel as a result of the proposal. The proposed 
intensification of use is required to follow the State rules for providing safe conditions, 
and there are no issues to address related to vandalism and trespass as this is private 
property. These criteria are met.  
 

Section 4.172 Flood Plain: 
 
Section 4.172 (.03):  Development Permit Required: 
A. A Development Permit shall be obtained before construction or development, including grading, 
begins within any area of special flood hazard. The Permit shall be for all structures including 
manufactured homes and for all development including fill and other activities. 
B. Outright Permitted Uses in the l00-year Flood Plain: 
l. Agricultural use that is conducted without a structure other than a boundary fence. 
2. Recreational uses which would require only minor structures such as picnic tables and barbecues. 
3. Residential uses that do not contain buildings. 
4. Underground utility facilities. 
5. Repair, reconstruction or improvement of an existing structure, the cost of which is less than 50 
percent of the market value of the structure, as determined by the City's Building Official, prior to the 
improvement or the damage requiring reconstruction, provided no development occurs in the floodway. 
 
Section 4.172 (.04):  Uses within the l00-year Flood Plain requiring a Flood Plain Permit: 
A. Any development except as specified in subsection (.03), above, that is otherwise permitted within the 
Zoning District provided such development is consistent with the Flood Plain Standards. 
B. All subdivisions and land partitions. 
C. Installation of dikes to provide buildable or usable property, provided that said dikes do not conflict 
with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan and this Section. 
 
A16. The applicant is requesting a Flood Plain Permit based upon the following improvements: 
 

Page 17 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 18 
 

  
With proposed condition PD8 a flood plain permit is required.  

Landscaping: 
          
Subsection 4.176.06(A-E): Plant Materials. 
 
A17. The applicant’s Planting Conceptual Plan in Exhibit B1 depicts tree, shrub, and ground 

cover types. The proposed Oregon grape and snowberry shrubs shall be increased from 1 
gallon to 2 gallon size.  

A18. The proposed specifications for secondary and accent trees meet code criterion for caliper 
size and/or height. This code criterion is met. 

 
Subsection 4.176.07(A-D): Installation and Maintenance. 
A19. Plant materials, once approved by the DRB, shall be installed to current industry 

standards and shall be properly staked to assure survival. Support devices (guy wires, 
etc.) shall not be allowed to interfere with normal pedestrian or vehicular movement. 
Maintenance of landscaped areas is the on-going responsibility of the property owner. 
Any landscaping installed to meet the requirements of this Code, or any condition of 
approval established by City decision-making body acting on an application, shall be 
continuously maintained in a healthy, vital and acceptable manner. Plants that die are to 
be replaced in kind, within one growing season, unless the City approves appropriate 
substitute species. Failure to maintain landscaping as required in this subsection shall 
constitute a violation of the City Code for which appropriate legal remedies, including the 
revocation of any applicable land development permits, may result.  

 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 19 
 

SUMMARY FINDING FOR REQUEST A:  
 
A20. As demonstrated in Findings A1 through A19 the proposed project meets the City criteria 

for granting approval of a Willamette River Greenway Conditional Use Permit. 
 

REQUEST B – TYPE ‘C’ TREE PLAN. 
 
Sections 4.008-4.009 Application Procedures and Applicant’s Rights 
 
B1. The applicant’s submitted documents meet these code criteria. 
 
Section 4.610.10 Guidelines and Limitations on Tree Removal 
 
B2. This section limits tree removal to, among other criteria, when tree removal is necessary 

for construction, when trees are diseased, become a nuisance, hazard, or interfere with the 
healthy growth of other trees. The tree proposed for removal had been deemed conflicting 
with construction of a proposed ramp to an existing boat marina by an arborist. The stated 
reason falls within the limits set by this subsection.  

 
Section 4.610.40  Type C Tree Permit 
 
B3. As the request involves the removal of four (4) trees within the SROZ, the request is 

being reviewed as a Type C application. This provision is satisfied. 
 
Subsection 4.610.40 (.02) and Subsection 4.610.40 (.02) Submittal Requirements  
 
B4. The requirements of these subsections are thus satisfied. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 20 
 

Requirement 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 

W
ai

ve
r 

G
ra

nt
ed

 

C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 
A

pp
ro

va
l 

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

fin
di

ng
s/

no
te

s 

  

In
fo

 
A

lr
ea

dy
 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 C
ity

 

In
fo

 N
ot

 N
ec

es
sa

ry
 

fo
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 

   

Statement why removal 
is necessary       

 

Description of trees 
(common name, d.b.h.)      

 

Name of person 
removing (if known)      

 

Time of removal (if 
known)      

 

Map showing location 
of tree(s)      

 

Arborist’s Report 
(health and condition, 
species, common name, 
d.b.h.) 

     

 

Tree protection 
information      

See Condition 
PD5 

Replacement tree 
description (species, 
size, number, cost) 

      
 

Copy of CC&R’s       

 
Additional findings: 
 
 
Section 4.620.00 Tree Relocation, Mitigation, or Replacement 
 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.01) Requirement Established  
 
B5. This subsection requires a Type C Tree Removal Permit grantee to replace or relocate 

each removed tree having six inches (6”) or greater d.b.h. within one year of removal.  
Four (4) trees are proposed for removal. The applicant is proposing to replace four (4) 
trees as part of the pathway planting restoration. This criterion is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.02) Basis for Determining Replacement  
 
B6. This subsection requires that removed trees be replaced on a basis of one (1) tree 

replanted for each tree removed. It also requires all replacement trees measure two inches 

Page 20 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 21 
 

(2”). The applicant is proposing to replace tree numbers 12, 13, 16 and 21 (2- Big-leaf 
maples, 1- Douglas fir and 1- bird cherry) with 7 – Big-leaf maples and 7 – Douglas firs. 
This criterion is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.03) A. Replacement Tree Requirements-Comparable Characteristics 
 
B7. This subsection identifies the requirements for replacement trees including: having 

characteristics similar to removed trees; being appropriately chosen for the site from an 
approved tree species list provided by the City, and being of state Department of 
Agriculture Nursery Grade No. 1 or better. The applicant is proposing to replace tree 
numbers 12, 13, 16 and 21 (2- Big-leaf maples, 1- Douglas fir and 1- bird cherry) with 7 
– Big-leaf maples and 7 – Douglas firs. The provisions of this subsection are satisfied. 

 
Subsections 4.620.00 (.03) B. and C. Replacement Tree Requirements-Tree Care and 
Guarantee 
 
B8. These subsections require replacement trees be staked, fertilized and mulched, and be 

guaranteed by the permit grantee or the grantee’s successors-in-interest for two (2) years 
after the planting date. A “guaranteed” tree that dies or becomes diseased during the two 
(2) year period is required to be replaced. The applicant is proposing to replace the four 
(4) trees. This subsection is satisfied, or will be satisfied by a condition of approval. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.3) D. Replacement Tree Requirements- Encouragement of Diversity of 
Species 
 
B9.  This subsection encourages a diversity of tree species to be planted. The trees subject to 

removal are the same species as that of the proposed replacement trees, maintaining the 
same level of diversity of the surrounding area. Staff finds this criterion satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.04) Additional Requirements for Replacement Trees 
 
B10. This subsection requires replacement trees consist of nursery stock that meets 

requirements of the American Association of Nurserymen (AAN) American Standards 
for Nursery Stock (ANSI Z60.1) for top grade. The applicant is proposing to replace four 
(4) trees. This subsection is satisfied, or will be satisfied by a condition of approval. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.05) Replacement Tree Location- Review Required 
 
B11. This subsection requires the City to review tree replacement plans in order to provide 

optimum enhancement, preservation and protection of wooded areas. It requires that to 
the extent feasible and desirable, trees be replaced on site and within the same general 
area as the removed trees. The applicant is proposing fourteen (14) replacement trees, 
which will be located near the same location as the one removed. This criterion is 
therefore satisfied.  

 
 

Page 21 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 22 
 

 
SUMMARY FINDING FOR REQUEST B: 

 
As demonstrated in Findings B1 through B11, the proposed Type ‘C’ Tree Plan and 
meets the City tree criteria.  
 

REQUEST C – ABREVIATED SRIR AND MAP VERIFICATION WITHIN THE SROZ.  
 

The detailed report titled Charbonneau Country Club Marina Access Project Abbreviated 
Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) prepared by SWCA, Environmental Consultants 
found in Exhibit B1 adequately studied the proposed impact of the project on the SROZ. 
Furthermore, the proposed findings regarding applicable review criteria are met in Exhibit B1. 
Staff has relied upon the applicant’s submittal documents, rather than repeat their contents again 
here. The application components are described briefly, below. 
 
SIGNIFICANT RESOURCE OVERLAY ZONE 

 
Section 4.139.02 Where These Regulations Apply 
 
The regulations of this Section apply to the portion of any lot or development site, which is within a 
Significant Resource Overlay Zone and its associated “Impact Areas”. The text provisions of the 
Significant Resource Overlay Zone ordinance take precedence over the Significant Resource Overlay 
Zone maps. The Significant Resource Overlay Zone is described by boundary lines shown on the City of 
Wilsonville Significant Resource Overlay Zone Map. For the purpose of implementing the provisions of 
this Section, the Wilsonville Significant Resource Overlay Zone Map is used to determine whether a 
Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) is required. Through the development of an SRIR, a more 
specific determination can be made of possible impacts on the significant resources. Unless otherwise 
exempted by these regulations, any development proposed to be located within the Significant Resource 
Overlay Zone and/or Impact Area must comply with these regulations. Where the provisions of this 
Section conflict with other provisions of the City of Wilsonville Planning and Land Development 
Ordinance, the more restrictive shall apply. The SROZ represents the area within the outer boundary of 
all inventoried significant natural resources. The Significant Resource Overlay Zone includes all land 
identified and protected under Metro’s UGMFP Title 3 Water Quality Resource Areas, as currently 
configured, significant wetlands, riparian corridors, and significant wildlife habitat that is inventoried 
and mapped on the Wilsonville Significant Resource Overlay Zone Map. 

 
C1. The subject property contains the Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ). The 

SROZ on the subject property was designated to protect the Willamette River riparian 
corridor and significant wildlife habitat. All development in the SROZ, unless exempted, 
shall comply with the regulations in WC Section 4.139. The proposed gangway or ramp 
to an existing boat marina are not exempt under the code due to the small areas of 
disturbance (i.e., greater than 120 SF). This criterion is satisfied.  

 
Section 4.139.04 Uses and Activities Exempt from These Regulations 
 
(.15) Developments  that  propose a minor encroachment into the Significant Resource Overlay Zone. 
The purpose of this adjustment would be to allow for minor encroachments of impervious surfaces such 
as accessory buildings, eave overhangs, building appurtenances, building access and exiting 

Page 22 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 23 
 

requirements or other similar feature. The total adjustment shall not exceed 120 square feet in cumulative 
area. 

 
C2. The proposed project does not satisfy the requirements for a minor encroachment of 

impervious area in the SROZ.  No impervious areas will be located in the SROZ.  This 
criterion is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.139.03 - Significant Resource Overlay Zone Impact Report. 
Section 4.139.06(.01) -  Abbreviated SRIR Review. 
 
A Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) is a report that delineates specific resource boundaries and 
analyzes the impacts of development within mapped significant resource area based upon the 
requirements of this Section. An SRIR is only required for non-exempt development that is located within 
the Significant Resource Overlay Zone and/or its associated 25 foot Impact Area. 
 
The Significant Resource Overlay Zone Map identifies areas that have been classified as significant 
natural resources. The preparation of the Significant Resource Overlay Zone Map did not include specific 
field observations of every individual property. These maps are designed to be specific enough to 
determine whether further environmental review of a development proposal is necessary. If any portion of 
the development or alteration of the land (except those exempted by this Section) is located within the 
Significant Resource Overlay Zone boundary or the identified Impact Area, then an SRIR is required 
before any development permit can be issued. Where it can be clearly determined by the Planning 
Director that development is only in the Impact Area and there is no impact to the Significant Resource, 
development may be permitted without SRIR review. The Planning Director may consult with a 
professional with appropriate expertise to evaluate an applicant’s SRIR prepared under this Section or 
may rely on appropriate staff expertise, in order to properly evaluate the report’s conclusions. 
 
(.01) Abbreviated SRIR Requirements.  It is the intent of this subsection to provide a user friendly process 
for the applicant. Only the materials necessary for the application review are required. At the discretion 
of the Planning Director, an abbreviated SRIR may be submitted for certain small-scale developments 
such as single family dwellings, additions to single family dwellings, minor additions and accessory 
structures. The following requirements shall be prepared and submitted as part of the abbreviated SRIR 
evaluation: 
 
C3. A. A Site Development Permit Application must be submitted in compliance with the Planning 

and Land Development Ordinance; An Site Development application was submitted on 
August 31, 2015 meeting this code criterion. 
B. Outline of any existing features including, but not limited to, structures, decks, areas 
previously disturbed and existing utility locations*; The applicant has identified on page 5 of 
44 and on Plan Sheet 2 of 7 of Exhibit B1 showing existing features meeting this code 
criterion. 
C. Location of any wetlands or water bodies on the site and the location of the stream centerline 
and top-of-bank; The applicant has identified water bodies and flood hazards on page 4 of 
44, and in the Charbonneau Country Club Marina Access Project Abbreviated Significant 
Resource Impact Report (SRIR) prepared by SWCA, Environmental Consultants in 
Exhibit B1 meeting this code criterion. 
D. Within the area proposed to be disturbed, the location, size and species of all trees that are 
more than six (6) inches in diameter at breast height (DBH). Trees outside the area proposed to 
be disturbed may be individually shown or shown as drip line with an indication of species type 

Page 23 of 26



Development Review Board Panel B, November 23, 2015 Page 24 
 

or types; The applicant has provided an arborist report in Exhibit B1 meeting this code 
criterion. 
E. The location of the SROZ and Impact Area boundaries*; The applicant has provided the 
location of SROZ in the Charbonneau Country Club Marina Access Project Abbreviated 
Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) prepared by SWCA, Environmental 
Consultants in Exhibit B1 meeting this code criterion. 
F. A minimum of three slope cross-section measurements transecting the site, equally spaced at 
no more than 100-foot increments. The measurements should be made perpendicular to the 
stream*; The applicant has identified on Plan Sheet 4 of 7 of Exhibit B1 showing  three 
slope cross-section measurements transecting the site, equally spaced at no more than 
100-foot increments meeting this code criterion. 
G. A map that delineates the Metro UGMFP Title 3 Water Quality Resource Area boundary 
(using Metro Title 3 field observed standards)*; The applicant has provided Metro UGMFP 
Title 3 Water Quality Resource Area boundary (using Metro Title 3 field observed 
standards in the Charbonneau Country Club Marina Access Project Abbreviated 
Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) prepared by SWCA, Environmental 
Consultants and shown on Plan Sheet 3 of 7 in Exhibit B1 meeting this code criterion. 
H. Current photos of site conditions shall be provided to supplement the above information*. The 
applicant has provided photos of existing site conditions in the Charbonneau Country 
Club Marina Access Project Abbreviated Significant Resource Impact Report (SRIR) 
prepared by SWCA, Environmental Consultants in Exhibit B1 meeting this code 
criterion. 
I. A narrative describing the possible and probable impacts to natural resources and a plan to 
mitigate for such impacts*. The applicant has provided a narrative describing the possible 
and probable impacts to natural resources and a plan to mitigate for such impacts in the 
Charbonneau Country Club Marina Access Project Abbreviated Significant Resource 
Impact Report (SRIR) prepared by SWCA, Environmental Consultants and on Plan 
Sheets 5, 1 of 1 and on the Planting Conceptual Plan in Exhibit B1 meeting this code 
criterion. 
*Indicates information that City Staff may have readily available to assist an applicant. Kerry 
Rappold, Natural Resources Program Manager has and is readily available to assist the 
applicant meeting this code criterion.   
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 24 of 26



Conditions of Approval (DB15-0059 – Charbonneau Marina Access).doc November 12, 2015 

 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning 
 
From: Kerry Rappold, Natural Resources Program Manager 
 
Date:   November 12, 2015 
 
RE: Conditional Use Permit (DB15-0059 and SI15-0001, Charbonneau Marina Access) 
 
This memorandum includes staff conditions of approval. The conditions are based on the 
Conditional Use Permit and the SRIR review. The conditions of approval apply to the applicant’s 
submittal of construction plans (i.e., engineering drawings). 
 
Significant Resource Overlay Zone  

 
NR1. Prior to any site grading or ground disturbance, the applicant is required to delineate the 

boundary of the SROZ.  Six-foot (6’) tall cyclone fences with metal posts pounded into 
the ground at 6’-8’ centers shall be used to protect the significant natural resource area 
where development encroaches into the 25-foot Impact Area. 

 
NR2. All landscaping, including herbicides used to eradicate invasive plant species and existing 

vegetation, in the SROZ shall be reviewed and approved by the Natural Resources 
Program Manager. Native plants are required for landscaping in the SROZ. 

 
NR3. Pursuant to Section 4.139.03 (.05) of the Wilsonville Code, the applicant is required to 

use habitat-friendly development practices (Table NR-2) to the extent practicable for any 
encroachment into the Significant Resource Overlay Zone and the 25-foot Impact Area.  

 
NR4. Mitigation actions shall be implemented prior to or at the same time as the impact activity 

is conducted. 
 
NR5. The applicant shall submit a monitoring and maintenance plan to be conducted for a 

period of five years following mitigation implementation. The applicant shall be 
responsible for ongoing maintenance and management activities, and shall submit an 
annual report to the Natural Resources Program Manager documenting such activities, 
and reporting progress towards the mitigation goals. The report shall contain, at a 
minimum, photographs from established photo points, quantitative measure of success 
criteria, including plant survival and vigor if these are appropriate data. The Year 1 
annual report shall be submitted one year following mitigation action implementation. 
The final annual report (Year 5 report) shall document successful satisfaction of 
mitigation goals, as per the stated performance standards. If the ownership of the 
mitigation site property changes ownership, the new owners will have the continued 
responsibilities established by this section. 

Page 25 of 26

swhite
Stamp



Conditions of Approval (DB15-0059 – Charbonneau Marina Access).doc November 12, 2015  

 
2 

 
NR6. The Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) and mitigation area depicted on the 

SRIR mapping for the site shall be identified in a conservation easement. The applicant 
shall record the conservation easement with Clackamas Court Clerk’s office. The 
conservation easement shall include language prohibiting any disturbance of natural 
vegetation without first obtaining approval from the City Planning Division and the 
Natural Resources Program Manager. The conservation easement shall be reviewed by 
the City Attorney prior to recording. 

 
Other: 
 
NR7. The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 

proposed construction activities and proposed facilities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN 
permit). 

 

Page 26 of 26



L d Use A plication
ity of sonville

CO I TuNA SE

EUVI E
A’NAA CE

I ATII EME

‘ anned ‘esden Development
amette RI er eenway; and SR I Z

September 1, 2015
Revised for Completeness 10-14-2015

APPLICANT:
Charbonneau ountry Club
Joan Buccino, President
32000 SW Charbonneau Drive
Wilsonville, OR 97070
Contacts: Susie Stevens & Richard Schram
Phone: (503) 694-2300
Email: susie(~charbonneaucountryclub.com

richardschram.rs(~gmail.com

APPLICANT’S REPRESENTATIVE: ii 2015 ~
Pioneer Design roup, Inc. OCT 5
9020 SW Washington Square Drive, Suite 170
Portland, OR 97223
Contact: Ben Altman
Phone: (503) 643-8286; Dir: 971-708-6258
Email: baltman(~pd-grp.com

swhite
Stamp



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Incomplete Application 
Response 

 







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Application 









 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compliance Report 



























































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SRIR 
SROZ Map 

























































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Arborist’s Report 















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site Photos 

































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tax Map & 
Easements & 
Ownership 













































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Preliminary Plans 
 





















swhite
Stamp



















 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2015 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
VIII. Board Member Communications: 

A. Agenda Results of the October 12, 2015 DRB 
Panel A meeting     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Wilsonville 

Development Review Board Panel A Meeting 
Meeting Results 

DATE:    OCTOBER 12, 2015 
LOCATION:  29799 SW TOWN CENTER LOOP EAST, WILSONVILLE, OR 
TIME START:      6:30 P.M. TIME END: 6:58 P.M.  

ATTENDANCE LOG 

BOARD MEMBERS STAFF 
Kristin Akervall Blaise Edmonds 

Lenka Keith Daniel Pauly 

Ronald Heberlein  

James Frinell  

City Council Liaison: Julie Fitzgerald  

 
AGENDA RESULTS 

AGENDA ACTIONS 

CITIZENS’ INPUT None. 

  

CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approval of minutes of September 14, 2015 DRB Panel A meeting A. Approved as presented with 
Lenka Keith abstaining. 

PUBLIC HEARING  

A. Resolution No. 315.  Grande Pointe at Villebois Temporary Use 
Permit:  Pacific Community Design – Representative for Grande 
Pointe at Villebois LLC and Grande Pointe Homeowners 
Association – Owners.  The applicant is requesting approval of a 
Five (5) Year Temporary Use Permit for a modular sales office, 
temporary parking and five (5) model homes in the Grande Pointe 
at Villebois Subdivision in Villebois.  The subject site is located on 
Tax Lots 3500, 3600, 3700, 3800, 4400, 4500 and 4600 of Section 
15CC, T3S, R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Staff:  Daniel Pauly 
 
Case Files:  DB15-0061Five (5) Year Temporary Use Permit 

 

A. Unanimously approved 
Resolution No. 315 

BOARD MEMBER COMUNICATIONS None. 

A. Results of the September 28, 2015 DRB Panel B meeting  

STAFF COMMUNICATIONS None. 

 


	Wilsonville City Hall
	29799 SW Town Center Loop East
	Wilsonville, Oregon
	III. Roll Call
	V. City Council Liaison Report
	Old Town 2 Houses SR.Exhibits.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION
	COMPREHENSIVE
	PLAN DESIGNATION:             Residential 6-7 du/ac

	REQUESTED ACTION:
	APPLICABLE CRITERIA:
	BACKGROUND:
	SUMMARY:
	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Section 4.001(7). Definitions � Accessory Dwelling Unit.
	Section 4.008. Application Procedures - In General.
	Section 4.009. Who May Initiate Applications
	Section 4.014. Burden of Proof
	Section 4.120 RA-H (Residential Agricultural � Holding) Zone
	(.02)  Uses permitted Outright:
	(.05) Off-Street Parking Requirements

	Section 4.138: Old Town (O) Overlay Zone
	Section 4.155 General Regulations � Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking
	Section 4.421 Criteria and Application of Design Standards
	SUMMARY FINDING FOR DB15-0074 � Site Design Review:

	REQUEST A:  DB15-0074 - SITE DESIGN REVIEW
	CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS

	APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA:
	Request A � Willamette River Greenway Conditional Use Permit
	Request B � Type �C� Tree Plan
	Request C � Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) Abbreviated Significant Resource Impact Report and Map (SRIR) Review.
	The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development Review Board in consideration of the applications as submitted:
	WILLAMETTE RIVER GREENWAY

	Section 4.139.03 - Significant Resource Overlay Zone Impact Report.
	Section 4.139.06(.01) -  Abbreviated SRIR Review.
	Exhibit C1 - NR Conditions.pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MEMORANDUM
	To: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning


	Incomplete Application Response
	Application
	Compliance Report
	SRIR.SROZ Map
	Arborists Report
	Site Photos
	Tax Map / Easements / Ownership
	Preliminary Plans



